
Village of Forest Park, Illinois 
517 Des Plaines Avenue 

Forest Park, Illinois 60130 
Phone: 708-366-2323 / Fax: 708-488-0361 

Web: www.forestpark.net 

Regular Village Council Meeting Agenda 
Monday, March 13, 2023 – 7:00 p.m. 

Meeting will be conducted In-Person and Via Zoom 

You may listen to the meeting by participating in a Zoom conference call as follows:  
Dial-In Number: 312-626-6799; Meeting ID 82451565538; Passcode 244992 or by clicking here: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82451565538?pwd=QWd1SUpPNFB6QVpEMVRUSlAySXZjQT09  

Public Comments are required to be submitted to the Village Clerk in advance of the meeting: 
In-Person Comments: Complete and submit Speaker Sign-In Form to Village Clerk prior to 7:00 p.m. 

E-mail Comments: E-mail required to be sent to Village Clerk (vmoritz@forestpark.net) prior to 6:30 p.m. 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
2. ROLL CALL 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

a. February 27, 2023 Village Council Meeting 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
5. COMMUNICATIONS 
6. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
7. BILLS BY RESOLUTION 

a. Resolution Approving Payment of Bills Dated March 13, 2023 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
9. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Resolution Approving the Specifications and Authorizing the Advertising of Bids for the Village of Forest 
Park 2023 Alley Improvements Project (900 Block Dunlop-Lathrop; 1100 Block Circle-Marengo) 

b. Resolution Approving the Specifications and Authorizing the Advertising of Bids for the Village of Forest 
Park 2023 Watermain and Resurfacing Project (Wilcox Street and Ferdinand Avenue) 

c. Resolution Authorizing the Village of Forest Park to Participate in the New National Opioid Settlements 
and Authorizing the Execution of Related Settlement Agreements with Teva, Allergan, CVS, Walgreens 
and Walmart 

d. Approval: Juneteenth Flag Raising Ceremony Request by the Illinois Juneteenth Committee, Forest Park 
e. Approval: Banner Request by the Heritage Chorale 
f. Approval: Ratification of Mayor’s Signature on Summer Clubhouse Field Trip Contract 
g. Motion to Approve Mayor’s Appointment of the Following Individuals: 

i. Jonah Harlan; Recreation Board; Term to Expire: April 30, 2023 
ii. John Cunningham; Recreation Board; Term to Expire: April 30, 2026 

10. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
a. Discussion: IEPA Loan Application for Funding for Lead Water Service Line Replacements 

11. COMMISSIONER REPORTS 
12. ADJOURNMENT 

a. Adjourn into Closed Session pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2(c) (2) Collective Bargaining Matters 



THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 
VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

HELD ON MONDAY EVENING, FEBRUARY 27, 2023 
 
 

Mayor Hoskins led all assembled in the Pledge of Allegiance at 7:00 p.m.  
 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins answered the Roll Call. 
 
 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 

It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by Commissioner Byrnes that the minutes 
from the February 13, 2023, Regular Meeting of the Council be approved without reading as each 
member has received a copy thereof.   
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by Commissioner Nero that the minutes from 
the February 13, 2023, Closed Meeting of the Council be approved without reading as each member 
has received a copy thereof.   
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Mr. Thomas Kovac submitted written public comment, which the clerk read aloud.  Mr. Kovac 
expressed his opposition to the text amendment to the I-2 Industrial zoning district. 
 
Ms. Barbara Jackson, Mr. Gino Pisani, Ms. Bobbie Jones, and Ms. Bonnie Nelson, all spoke in 
opposition of a cannabis dispensary being approved for 7216 Circle.  They cited security concerns 
as well as anticipated a negative impact on the neighborhood.   
 



 2 

COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
None 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 
 
The Fire Department submitted its January, 2023, report. 
 
APPROVAL OF BILLS: 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Byrnes and seconded by 
Commissioner Maxham that the Resolution for the payment of 
bills be adopted.  The bills totaled $544,819.17. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 
Mr. Neil Rembos, President of the Forest Park Chamber of 
Commerce presented the Chamber’s budget and marketing 
plan, in support of the village’s projected funding of $40,000 
per year for the next three years.  The funding is reserved out 
of the village’s ARPA funding. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero that the Ordinance granting a conditional 
use permit for a Cannabis Dispensary in the B-2 District in the 
Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois re: PZC 2023-01: 
7216 Circle Avenue be adopted. There was discussion about 
the well-prepared documents as well as the security and 
camera systems that are proposed and the additional source 
of revenue for the village.  Each of the elected officials 
expressed their support for the dispensary. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

 
 

R-08-23 
RESOLUTION FOR THE 

PAYMENT OF BILLS IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $544,819.17 

APPROVED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAMBER PRESENTATION 
AND REQUEST OF ARPA 

FUNDING FOR MARKETING 
ACTIVITIES 

 
 
 
 

O-09-23 
ORDINANCE GRANTING 
CONDITIONAL USE FOR 

CANNABIS DISPENSARY 
AT 7216 CIRCLE AVENUE 

APPROVED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 3 

It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Byrnes that the Ordinance amending Title 9, 
Chapter 10, of the Village of Forest Park code to add an 
additional authorized variation, in the Village of Forest Park, 
Cook County, Illinois re: PZC 2022-04 be adopted. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero that the Ordinance authorizing approval of 
authorized variations to allow the resubdivision of two lots 
under common ownership at 118 Rockford Avenue and 7515-
7521 Dixon Street, in the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, 
Illinois re: PZC 2022-04 be adopted. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero that the Ordinance amending Title 9, 
Chapter 5, Article B of the Village of Forest Park code to 
update permitted and prohibited uses in the I-2 District, in the 
Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois be adopted. (PZC 
2022-06) 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Voogd and seconded by 
Commissioner Byrnes to amend section 9-5B-1: Use 
Regulations by adding the following after “canning plant”  
“, but excluding slaughterhouse, stockyards, fat rendering, 
soap manufacture, glue manufacture, tannery, paper 
manufacture, wool scouring and cleaning; cotton textile sizing, 
scouring, bleaching, dyeing and similar operations; paint and 
varnish manufacture, creosote and creosote products 
manufacture.” 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

O-10-23 
ORDINANCE AMENDING 

ZONING CODE TEXT 
APPROVED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

O-11-23 
ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING 

VARIATIONS AND 
RESUBDIVISION OF 118 

ROCKFORD AND 7515-7521 
DIXON 

APPROVED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MOTION TO AMEND TEXT 
OF ZONING CODE FOR I-2 

DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 

AMENDMENT TO MOTION 
AND PROPOSED 

ORDINANCE 
APPROVED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 4 

Clerk Moritz was instructed to call the roll call on the original 
motion, as amended. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Byrnes that the Ordinance amending section 2-
7 of Chapter 7 of Title 2 of the municipal code of the Village of 
Forest Park be adopted.   
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero to amend section 2-7-1, regarding 
residency of members to strike “The residency requirement for 
the board of health shall not apply to up to two (2) board 
members who, at the discretion of the mayor and the Village 
Council, possess technical training, knowledge, or experience 
which will enhance the composition of the board.” 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
Clerk Moritz was instructed to call the roll call on the original 
motion, as amended. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Voogd and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero that the Ordinance rescinding Ordinance 
No. O-06-22, waiving bid and re-authorizing the acceptance of 
an updated Retail Sales Order for the purchase of two (2) fully 
equipped 2024 International HV 607 Heavy Duty Plow Trucks 
with buildout be adopted. 
 

O-12-23 
ORDINANCE AMENDING 
TEXT OF ZONING CODE 

FOR I-2 DISTRICT 
APPROVED AS AMENDED 

 
 
 
 
 

MOTION TO AMEND 
SECTION 2-7 OF THE 

VILLAGE CODE 
REGARDING BOARD OF 

HEALTH 
 

AMENDMENT TO MOTION 
AND PROPOSED 

ORDINANCE CREATING 
BOARD OF HEALTH 

APPROVED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

O-13-23 
ORDINANCE AMENDING 

SECTION 2-7 REGARDING 
BOARD OF HEALTH 

APPROVED AS AMENDED 
 
 
 
 
 
 

O-14-23 
ORDINANCE RESCINDING 

0-06-22 AND RE-
AUTHORIZING PURCHASE 

OF 2 PLOW TRUCKS 
APPROVED 

 



 5 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Voogd and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero that the Ordinance approving and 
authorizing the execution of a reinstatement of terms and 
fourth amendment to the Communications Site Lease 
agreement between the Village of Forest Park and Chicago 
SMSA Limited Partnership d/b/a Verizon Wireless be adopted. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Nero and seconded by 
Commissioner Voogd that the Resolution approving and 
authorizing the execution of an application for a Cook County 
Bureau of Economic Development Community Development 
Block Grant Program (CDBG) 2023 Program Year Capital 
Improvement/Demolition and Economic Development Project 
be adopted. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Nero and seconded by 
Commissioner Voogd that the Annual Resolution for 
Maintenance under Illinois Highway Code be adopted. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

O-15-23 
ORDINANCE APPROVING 

4TH AMENDMENT AND 
REINSTATING CHICAGO 

SMSA VERIZON SITE 
LEASE 

APPROVED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R-14-23 
RESOLUTION APPROVING 

CDBG 2023 PROGRAM 
YEAR CAPITAL 

IMPROVEMENT, 
DEMOLITION AND 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT PROJECT 

APPROVED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R-15-23 
RESOLUTION FOR 

MAINTENANCE UNDER 
ILLINOIS HIGHWAY CODE 

APPROVED 
 
 
 
 
 



 6 

It was moved by Commissioner Nero and seconded by 
Commissioner Voogd that the Resolution for Improvement 
under the Illinois Highway Code regarding Wilcox and 
Ferdinand Avenue Projects be adopted. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Voogd and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero that the Resolution approving and 
authorizing the execution of a Professional Engineering 
Services Proposal for Phase II Design for the 2023 Community 
Center Playground Improvement Project by and between the 
Village of Forest Park and Christopher B. Burke Engineering, 
Ltd. be adopted. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Byrnes and seconded by 
Commissioner Maxham to approve the request from Storino, 
Ramello & Durkin for a change in hourly rates for legal 
services. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 

R-16-23 
RESOLUTION FOR 

IMPROVEMENT UNDER 
ILLINOIS HIGHWAY CODE 

FOR WILCOX AND 
FERDINAND AVENUE 

PROJECTS 
APPROVED 

 
 
 
 

R-17-23 
RESOLUTION APPROVING 
ENGINEERING PROPOSAL 
FOR COMMUNITY CENTER 

PLAYGROUND WITH 
CHRISTOPHER BURKE 

ENGINEERING 
APPROVED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STORINO, RAMELLO AND 
DURKIN REQUEST TO 

CHANGE HOURLY RATES 
APPROVED BY MOTION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT: 
 
Administrator Amidei went over different options for an EV charging station to be placed in 
Constitution Court.  The village was awarded a $7,500 grant from the Metropolitan Mayors’ Caucus 
and ComEd.  The cost for installing the different options will range from $7,000 to $12,200 out of 
pocket for the village.  The equipment will be leased. The administrator further requested 
consideration for our front-line staff at village hall.  The staff works hard to provide personal service to 
the public and they deal with a lot.   



 7 

 
 
COMMISSIONER’S REPORTS: 
 
Commissioner Maxham reported that the Housing Forward Sleep Out was awesome.  It was cold, but 
worth it.  The group raised $8,000 for the Homeless Veteran Program.  The commissioner further 
expressed appreciation to Director Glinke for all of the detailed work required to move the zoning 
items forward. 
 
Commissioner Voogd discussed the Single-Use Plastic survey and upcoming ordinance.  The 
commissioner expressed her appreciation to resident, Julieta Aguilera, who submitted the images of 
the discarded plastic and single-use items, for illustration.  It is expected that the proposed ordinance 
will be before the Village Council in the next meeting or two. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

There being no further business to be addressed, Commissioner Nero moved and Commissioner 
Byrnes seconded to adjourn the meeting.  The motion carried. 
 
Mayor Hoskins declared the meeting adjourned at 8:24 P.M. 
 
 

Respectfully submitted,  
 
 

Vanessa Moritz 
Village Clerk 



R E S O L U T I O N  No.

    BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, 
that we dispense with the reading of the individual bills inasmuch as each department head has approved
and signed bills in the following aggregate amount for their respective departments.

Refunds and Allocations 25.00$                             
Public Affairs 87,427.11$                      
Police Department 6,115.23$                        
Community Center 817.12$                           
Accounts & Finance (Clerks Office) 179,633.86$                    
Accounts & Finance (Fire Department) 4,276.80$                        
Department of Health & Safety 3,704.00$                        
Street Department 82,017.04$                      
Public Property 70,326.32$                      
Seizure 710.13$                           
Federal Custom 17,396.06$                      
VIP 238.01$                           
Water Department 18,479.34$                      

471,166.02$                    

ADOPTED BY THE Council of the Village of Forest Park this 13th Day of March, 2023.

  

Ayes:
Nays:
Absent:

___________________________
Rory Hoskins, Mayor

ATTEST:

___________________________
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-00-000-4230-135 Elvira Galang 02/14/2023 25.00

Refunds and Allocations 25.00



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-10-101-6100-305  Saber-Toothed Computing 12/15/2022 199.99
100-10-101-6150-152  Verizon Wireless 02/22/2023 300.33
100-10-101-6150-152  Verizon Wireless 02/22/2023 8.17
100-10-101-6150-300  West Suburban Cons Dispatch Center 02/01/2023 87,995.00
100-10-101-6150-300  West Suburban Cons Dispatch Center 02/01/2023 -20,351.00
100-10-101-6150-300  West Suburban Cons Dispatch Center 02/01/2023 -936.58
100-10-101-7000-150  Telcom Innovations Group LLC 02/20/2023 288.00
100-11-111-6110-105  DELL MARKETING LP 01/26/2023 17,705.20
100-11-111-6110-105  Techno Consulting Inc 02/20/2023 312.50
100-11-111-6110-105  Techno Consulting Inc 02/20/2023 687.50
100-11-111-6110-110  Redsky Technologies Inc 02/21/2023 1,218.00

Public Affairs 87,427.11



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-12-123-5000-001  Estate of Jose Francisco Flores 02/26/2023 1,534.47
100-12-123-5000-001  The Estate of Nicholas Kozak 02/26/2023 1,442.38
100-12-123-5000-001  POLICE PENSION FUND 02/26/2023 158.44
100-12-123-5000-001  POLICE PENSION FUND 02/26/2023 169.42
100-12-123-5000-030  Estate of Jose Francisco Flores 02/26/2023 777.49
100-12-123-5000-030  The Estate of Nicholas Kozak 02/26/2023 415.22
100-12-123-5005-101  Estate of Jose Francisco Flores 02/26/2023 41.05
100-12-123-5005-101  The Estate of Nicholas Kozak 02/26/2023 20.32
100-12-123-6145-202  Steri-Clean Restoring Homes and Lives 02/17/2023 140.00
100-12-124-6145-211  Sirchie Acquisition Company LLC. 02/13/2023 116.35
100-12-124-6150-114  Critical Reach Inc 12/07/2022 530.00
100-12-125-6145-205  Cook County Bureau of Technology 02/09/2023 770.09

Police Department 6,115.23



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-15-154-6170-102  Rose's Catering 03/07/2023 400.00
100-15-154-6170-105 LaTessa Smith 03/01/2023 417.12

Community Center 817.12



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-21-211-5005-002  Blue Cross-Blue Shield of Ill 02/14/2023 139,794.54
100-21-211-6110-110  Xerox Financial Services 02/08/2023 368.04
100-21-211-6110-110  Xerox Financial Services 02/08/2023 158.68
100-21-211-6140-102  Suburban Mailing Services Inc 02/20/2023 3,839.10
100-21-211-6140-104  Quill 02/02/2023 222.19
100-21-211-6140-104  Quill 02/08/2023 279.47
100-21-211-6140-104  Quill 02/15/2023 82.93
100-21-211-6140-110  Forest Printing Company 02/15/2023 425.45
100-21-211-6140-110  Forest Printing Company 02/15/2023 238.50
100-21-211-6140-140  Quill 02/02/2023 65.10
100-21-211-6140-140  Quill 02/08/2023 20.58
100-21-211-6140-140  Quill 02/15/2023 83.12
100-21-211-6150-122  Springbrook Holding Company LLC 02/14/2023 992.25
100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T 02/25/2023 111.91
100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T 02/25/2023 55.97
100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T 02/25/2023 51.18
100-21-211-6160-001  Illinois Counties Risk Management Trust 03/04/2021 587.99
100-21-211-6160-001  Illinois Counties Risk Management Trust 03/24/2021 9,721.00
100-21-211-6160-001  Illinois Counties Risk Management Trust 05/31/2021 4,041.65
100-21-211-6160-001  Illinois Counties Risk Management Trust 07/27/2021 1,783.50
100-21-211-6160-001  Illinois Counties Risk Management Trust 01/01/2023 -2,500.00
100-21-211-6160-001  Illinois Counties Risk Management Trust 01/01/2023 -500.00
100-21-211-6190-003  POLICE PENSION FUND 02/26/2023 8,952.00
100-21-211-6190-004  Firefighters Pension Fund 02/26/2023 8,952.00
100-21-211-7000-080  Xerox Financial Services 02/08/2023 122.50
100-21-211-7000-080  Xerox Financial Services 02/08/2023 1,684.21

Accounts & Finance (Clerks Office) 179,633.86



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-30-301-6140-200  Tri-Supply Co. 02/17/2023 291.95
100-30-302-6110-150 Phil Chiappetta 02/28/2023 198.09
100-30-302-6110-150  Verizon Wireless 02/22/2023 215.50
100-30-302-6145-100  Air One Equipment Inc 02/20/2023 3,058.00
100-30-302-6145-105 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 02/16/2023 157.39
100-30-302-6145-105 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 02/21/2023 355.87

Accounts & Finance (Fire Department) 4,276.80



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-40-401-5000-017 Raymond Traynor 02/27/2023 630.00
100-40-403-6150-230  Elevator Inspection Services 02/15/2023 2,944.00
100-40-403-6150-230  Elevator Inspection Services 02/15/2023 50.00
100-40-403-6150-230  Elevator Inspection Services 02/16/2023 80.00

Department of Health & Safety 3,704.00



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-50-501-6145-100 Patrick Scollard 02/27/2023 100.00
100-50-502-6180-160  Com Ed 02/21/2023 3,954.16
100-50-502-6185-110  One Way Safety LLC 10/28/2022 281.77
100-50-502-6185-110  Traffic Control & Protection 02/17/2023 83.10
100-50-502-6185-112  Republic Services #551 02/15/2023 770.40
100-50-502-6185-501  Republic Services #551 02/15/2023 43,506.18
100-50-502-6185-502  Republic Services #551 02/15/2023 30,757.48
100-50-502-6185-502  Republic Services #551 02/15/2023 -1,760.51
100-50-502-6185-503  Republic Services #551 02/15/2023 4,324.46

Street Department 82,017.04



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-55-552-6145-100 Jim Becker 02/27/2023 100.00
100-55-552-6180-101  First Ayd Corp. 02/22/2023 158.72
100-55-552-6180-114  Case Lots Inc 10/01/2022 598.80
100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 12/13/2022 0.10
100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 02/20/2023 16,527.50
100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 02/22/2023 215.31
100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 02/22/2023 171.75
100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 02/23/2023 381.40
100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 02/27/2023 2,095.77
100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 02/28/2023 781.00
100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 02/28/2023 1,348.90
100-55-553-6180-152  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 02/28/2023 595.00
100-55-553-6180-152  State Treasurer-IDOT 02/17/2023 617.49
100-55-553-6180-152  State Treasurer-IDOT 02/17/2023 514.53
100-55-553-6180-152  State Treasurer-IDOT 02/17/2023 385.92
100-55-553-6180-152  State Treasurer-IDOT 02/17/2023 514.56
100-55-553-6180-152  State Treasurer-IDOT 02/17/2023 385.92
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 01/26/2023 958.88
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 01/27/2023 112.71
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 01/30/2023 536.92
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 01/30/2023 190.15
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 01/30/2023 113.08
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 02/14/2023 105.93
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 02/28/2023 30.62
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 02/28/2023 33.08
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 02/28/2023 30.85
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 02/28/2023 31.16
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 02/28/2023 261.99
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 03/01/2023 29.21
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 03/01/2023 46.72
100-55-555-6180-100  Illinois Alarm 03/01/2023 192.00
100-55-555-6180-100  Quill 02/02/2023 185.79
100-55-555-6180-100  Quill 02/08/2023 276.61
100-55-555-6180-100  Quill 02/08/2023 99.12
100-55-555-6180-100  Quill 02/15/2023 104.99
100-55-555-6180-100  Quill 02/15/2023 79.80
100-55-555-6180-110  Comcast 02/02/2023 50.60



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-55-555-6180-110  Comcast 02/08/2023 200.01
100-55-555-6180-110  Comcast 02/12/2023 2.11
100-55-555-6180-110  Comcast 02/13/2023 128.95
100-55-555-6180-115  Illinois Alarm 03/01/2023 165.00
100-55-555-6180-120  Illinois Alarm 03/01/2023 165.00
100-55-555-6180-130  Illinois Alarm 02/24/2023 371.24
100-55-555-6180-130  Illinois Alarm 03/01/2023 165.00
100-55-555-6180-140  Comcast 02/07/2023 2.11
100-55-555-6180-140  HOME DEPOT CREDIT 01/17/2023 -103.35
100-55-555-6180-140  HOME DEPOT CREDIT 01/17/2023 111.84
100-55-555-6180-140  HOME DEPOT CREDIT 01/19/2023 71.04
100-55-555-6180-140  HOME DEPOT CREDIT 01/23/2023 278.00
100-55-555-6180-140  HOME DEPOT CREDIT 02/02/2023 40.28
100-55-555-6180-140  HOME DEPOT CREDIT 02/06/2023 178.48
100-55-555-6180-140  HOME DEPOT CREDIT 02/09/2023 208.30
100-55-555-6180-140  HOME DEPOT CREDIT 02/10/2023 67.00
100-55-555-6180-140  Illinois Alarm 03/01/2023 135.00
100-55-570-6155-101  Mohr Oil Company 02/16/2023 12,406.53
100-55-570-6155-106  CCP INDUSTRIES INC 02/23/2023 123.24
100-55-570-6155-106  Certified Laboratories 02/17/2023 491.52
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 02/14/2023 132.40
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 02/14/2023 144.97
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 02/15/2023 66.78
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 02/24/2023 232.39
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 02/24/2023 16.38
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 02/27/2023 169.26
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 02/27/2023 48.18
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 02/28/2023 177.40
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 02/28/2023 -11.00
100-55-570-6155-106  Vermeer-Illinois Inc. 02/10/2023 312.60
100-55-570-6155-106  Vermeer-Illinois Inc. 02/10/2023 81.64
100-55-570-6155-112  Caliber Collision 08/16/2022 482.82
100-55-570-6155-112  Caliber Collision 12/31/2022 4,955.89
100-55-570-6155-112  BC Body Craft Inc 12/01/2022 3,460.43
100-55-570-6155-112  Commercial Tire Service 02/17/2023 1,034.75
100-55-570-6155-112  Commercial Tire Service 02/21/2023 51.50
100-55-570-6155-112  Currie Motors Chevrolet 02/23/2023 2,912.63



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-55-570-6155-112  Fire Service Inc 02/27/2023 1,604.36
100-55-570-6155-112  Fleet Safety Supply 02/06/2023 1,097.90
100-55-570-6155-112  Freeway Ford Sterling Truck 02/13/2023 2,928.46
100-55-570-6155-112  Freeway Ford Sterling Truck 02/14/2023 2,592.02
100-55-570-6155-112  Freeway Ford Sterling Truck 02/23/2023 3,613.82
100-55-570-6155-202  Berwyn Garage 01/19/2023 150.56

Public Property 70,326.32



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

230-00-000-6150-152  Verizon Wireless 02/22/2023 261.28
230-00-000-6150-152  Verizon Wireless 02/22/2023 72.14
230-00-000-6900-230  Illinois Secretary of State 03/12/2023 171.00
230-00-000-6900-230  Quill 02/16/2023 205.71

Seizure 710.13



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

232-00-000-6900-232  C.G.Professional Services Inc 02/13/2023 240.00
232-00-000-6900-232  C.G.Professional Services Inc 02/16/2023 250.77
232-00-000-6900-232  CAPERS North America 02/01/2023 13,000.00
232-00-000-6900-232 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 02/14/2023 883.84
232-00-000-6900-232 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 02/14/2023 711.37
232-00-000-6900-232 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 02/20/2023 33.98
232-00-000-6900-232 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 02/20/2023 33.98
232-00-000-6900-232 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 02/24/2023 851.60
232-00-000-6900-232 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 02/27/2023 836.02
232-00-000-6900-232  Pro Line Embroidery LLC 02/20/2023 554.50

Federal Customs 17,396.06



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

312-00-000-6150-152  Verizon Wireless 02/22/2023 38.01
312-00-000-7000-312  K-Five Hodgkins LLC 02/08/2023 80.00
312-00-000-7000-312  K-Five Hodgkins LLC 02/13/2023 40.00
312-00-000-7000-312  K-Five Hodgkins LLC 02/14/2023 40.00
312-00-000-7000-312  K-Five Hodgkins LLC 02/21/2023 40.00

VIP 238.01



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

501-80-800-6110-105  Verizon Wireless 02/22/2023 36.01
501-80-800-6150-150  AT&T 02/25/2023 59.93
501-80-800-6150-154  Com Ed 01/30/2023 21.42
501-80-800-6150-154  Com Ed 01/30/2023 78.33
501-80-800-6150-154  Com Ed 02/13/2023 61.10
501-80-800-6150-154  Com Ed 02/13/2023 241.22
501-80-800-6150-154  Com Ed 02/14/2023 37.30
501-80-800-6800-111  Suburban Laboratories Inc 02/21/2023 225.00
501-80-800-6800-111  Suburban Laboratories Inc 02/28/2023 795.50
501-80-800-6800-150  Clear View 02/20/2023 4,855.14
501-80-800-6800-153  Comcast 02/06/2023 83.90
501-80-800-6800-153  CDC ENTERPRISES INC 02/28/2023 10,127.28
501-80-800-6800-153 Joseph Danno 02/19/2023 1,676.00
501-00-000-2001-002 Kelly Rice 2/21/2023 181.21

Water Department 18,479.34



AGENDA MEMO 

Village Council Meeting 

Forest Park, Illinois 

March 13, 2023 

 

Issue Statement  

Request for Village Council Action: Resolution Approving the Specifications and Authorizing the Advertising 
of Bids for the Village of Forest Park 2023 Alley Improvements Project (900 Block Dunlop-Lathrop; 1100 
Block Circle-Marengo) 
 
Background 

The 2023 Village Infrastructure Improvements Program includes the reconstruction of the two above referenced 
alleys utilizing conventional construction – the alleys will be reconstructed in their entirety using concrete. 

The estimated cost of this project, including engineering, amounts to $546,000 - $346,000 from the VIP Fund 
and $170,000 from the Water/Sewer Fund. 

Upon the Village Council’s adoption of said Resolution, the bid process will commence immediately.  The 
Village Administrator will discuss the Village’s transition to an on-line bidding process starting with this 
project at the March 13, 2023 Village Council Meeting. 

 
Attachments 

- The above referenced Resolution, along with project specifications; 
- Project map.  Please note that the alleys along the 800 and 900 blocks of Circle-Marengo are planned for 

2024, utilizing green (permeable paver) construction elements; and, 
- Village alley atlas map, last updated in early 2023.  One will note that all alleys south of Roosevelt have 

been reconstructed as well as almost all (3 are left) alleys north of I-290.  In the coming year(s), focus 
will be given to those alleys between Harrison and Roosevelt – unless safety/deterioration conditions 
warrant otherwise. 



Pa
th

: N
:\F

O
R

ES
TP

AR
K

\0
02

3\
G

E
N

E
R

AL
\2

01
7\

M
W

R
D

 G
re

en
 In

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

G
ra

nt
\L

oc
at

io
n 

M
ap

 2
02

3.
m

xd

800 BLOCK CIRCLE-MARENGO ALLEY

900 BLOCK CIRCLE-MARENGO ALLEY

900 BLOCK DUNLOP-LATHROP ALLEY

1100 BLOCK CIRCLE-MARENGO ALLEY

MA
RE

NG
O 

AV
EHARVARD ST

DE
S P

LA
IN

ES
 AV

E

HA
RL

EM
 AV

E

JACKSON BLVD

LEXINGTON ST

EISENHOWER EXPY

HARRISON ST

CI
RC

LE
 AV

E

HA
NN

AH
 AV

E

EL
GI

N A
VE

ROOSEVELT RDTR
OO

ST
 AV

E

LEHMER ST

TAYLOR ST

YUBA ST

LATHROP
AVE

FILLMORE ST

LA
TH

RO
P A

VE

HA
NN

AH
 AV

E

TH
OM

AS
 AV

E

BE
LO

IT 
AV

E

FE
RD

IN
AN

D A
VE

WILCOX ST

DU
NL

OP
 AV

E

IL43

POLK ST

YORK ST

I290EB

I290EB

TO I290WB

THOMAS AVE
BE

LO
IT 

AV
E

FE
RD

IN
AN

D A
VE

MA
RE

NG
O 

AV
E ELGIN AVEVAN BUREN ST

Copyright nearmap 2015

TITLE:

DSGN.

CHKD.
FILE:

DWN.

CLIENT: PROJ. NO.

DATE:

SHEET     1     OF    1

DRAWING NO.

EXH 1

PROJECT LOCATION MAP
2023 ALLEYS

000023

08/17/2022

SCALE:
AUTHOR:

Location Map 2023
PLOT DATE:

DWALTERS
 8/17/2022

1:6,000
DRW

0 500 1,000250

Feet
1 inch = 500 feet N



VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK

201120102012

20102010

2009

2009

2008

2006

2006

2006

2006

2006

2006 20062006

2006

2006

2006

2006

2006

2006

2006

2006

2006 2006

2006

2006

2006

2005

2005

2005

2005

2005 2005 2005

2005

2005

2005 2005

2005

2005

2005 2005

2005

2005

20052005

ALLEY IMPROVEMENTS

2000

2001

2001

2003

2003

2004

2004

20022005

2005 2006

2006

2006

2007

2004

2000
PRE 

2000
PRE 

2000
PRE 

2000
PRE 

2000
PRE 

2000
PRE 

2000
PRE 

2000
PRE 

2000
PRE 

2013

2012

0 400' 800' 1600'

FOREST PARK

VILLAGE OF

CLIENT:

DRAWING NO.

SHEET      OF

TITLE:

    

FILE NAME $FILE$

        

      DSGN.

      

      CHKD.

SCALE:

DWN.

$SCALE$

MODEL:

$DATE$PLOT DATE:

    

$USER$

$FILEN$FILE:

CAD USER:

PROJ. NO.           

$MODELNAME$

DATE:                                
ALLEY IMPROVEMENT EXHIBIT

                       
 

ALLEY CONDITION 

ALLEY INVENTORY

VILLAGE LIMIT

INVERTED CROWN
RECONSTRUCTED WITH 

UNDER CONSTRUCTION

2013

2013

2013

2013

UNSERVICEABLE ( <8 YEARS)

POOR (8-10 YEARS)

AVERAGE (10-20 YEARS)

2015

2015

2015

2015 2015

2014

2014

2014

2014

20142016 2016

2016

2016

2016

CDBG ELGIBLE AREA

2017

2017

2017

2017

2017

2017

201720172017201720172017

20182018

2018

RECONSTRUCTED, HALF NOT RECONSTRUCTED.
* PARTIAL ALLEYS WERE COUNTED AS HALF

18

 
 
99

2019

2021

2022

2022

REVISED MARCH 2023

2 NORTH SIDE, 16 SOUTH SIDE
ALLEYS NOT RECONSTRUCTED

OR UNDER CONSTRUCTION 
ALLEYS WITH INVERTED CROWN

HARRISON ST.

A
V

E
.

A
V

E
.

A
V

E
.

YORK ST.

POLK ST.

HARVARD ST.

FILLMORE ST.

ST.TAYLOR

YUBA ST.

RD.

L
A

T
H

R
O

P

D
U

N
L

O
P

T
R

O
O

S
T

D
E

S
 

P
L

A
I

N
E

S

A
V

E
.

A
V

E
.

D
E
S
 
P

L
A
I

N
E
S

F
E

R
D
I

N
A

N
D

B
E

L
O
I

T

T
H

O
M

A
S

H
A

N
N

A
H

ST.LEXINGTON

A
V

E
.

A
V

E
.

A
V

E
.

A
V

E
.

C
I

R
C

L
E

M
A

R
E

N
G

O

E
L

G
I

N

A
V

E
.

A
V

E
.

A
V

E
.

ST.

ST.

13th

14th

15th ST.

A
V

E
.

LEHMER

AVE.

E
L

G
I

N

M
A

R
E

N
G

O

C
I

R
C

L
E

BLVDJACKSON

A
V

E
.

A
V

E
.

A
V

E
.

ST.ADAMS

A
V

E
.

A
V

E
.

A
V

E
.

A
V

E
.

H
A

N
N

A
H

T
H

O
M

A
S

B
E

L
O
I

T

F
E

R
D
I

N
A

N
D

L
A

T
H

R
O

P
A

V
E
.

D
E

S
 

P
L

A
I

N
E

S

A
V

E
.

ADAMS ST.

JACKSON BLVD.

ST.

ST.

WILCOX ST.

J
A

C
K

S
O

N
B

L
V

D
.

V
A

N
 

B
U

R
E

N

VAN BUREN

ST.RAILROAD

C. & N. W.

E
L

G
I

N

E
L

G
I

N

M
A

R
E

N
G

O

ST.

ST.

ST.

ST.

ST.

RANDOLPH

WASHINGTON

AVE.WARREN

WASHINGTON ST.

A
V

E
.

BERGMAN CT.

C
I

R
C

L
E

C
I

R
C

L
E

R
O

C
K

F
O

R
D

DIXON

B
E

L
V
I

D
E

R
E

A
V

E
.

A
V

E
.

A
V

E
.

AVE.

A
V

E
.D

E
S
 

P
L

A
I

N
E

S

B
R

O
W

N
A

V
E
.

LINCOLNAVE.

A
V

E
.

D
E

S
 

P
L

A
I

N
E

S

B
U

R
C

H
A

R
D

T
C

T
.

FRANKLIN

BROWN

A
V

E
.

A
V

E
.

MONROE

ADAMS

S
T
.

P
A

R
K

L
A

T
H

R
O

P
A

V
E
.

A
V

E
.

A
V

E
.

A
V

E
.

ST.16th

00

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

1100

1200

1300

1400

1500

1600

100

7
2

0
0

7
3

0
0

7
4

0
0

7
5

0
0

7
6

0
0

100

200

300

00

8
0
0
0

7
9
0
0

7
7
0
0

7
8
0
0

7
2

0
0

7
3

0
0

7
4

0
0

7
5

0
0

7
6

0
0

7
9
0
0

7
8
0
0

7
7

0
0

ROOSEVELT



1119200_1  

RESOLUTION NO. R-__________-23 
 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE SPECIFICATIONS AND  
AUTHORIZING THE ADVERTISING OF BIDS FOR THE  

VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 2023 ALLEY IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
(900 Block Dunlop-Lathrop; 1100 Block Circle-Marengo) 

 
 WHEREAS, the Village of Forest Park ("Village") has undertaken a Project to develop 

plans and specifications for the 2023 Alley Improvements Project in the Village (the "Project"); 

and 

 WHEREAS, the Village desires to approve certain specifications and advertisement for 

bids for the Project. 

 BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Village Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook 

County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. Finding of the Corporate Authorities 

 In the opinion of a majority of the corporate authorities of the Village, it is advisable, 

necessary and in the public interest that the Village approve the specifications, advertise for bids 

and solicit bids for the Project. 

 Section 2. Advertisement for Bids 

 The Village Clerk and Village Engineer, Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd., are 

hereby authorized and directed to cause an advertisement and to solicit bids, pursuant to the public 

bid process and in substantially the form of the Local Public Agency 2023 Alley Improvements 

Project Contract Proposal/Bid Specifications Package, attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and made a 

part hereof. 

  



1119200_1  

 Section 3. Effective Date 

 This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval in 

the manner provided by law. 

ADOPTED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 13th 

day of March, 2023. 

AYES:  ___________________ 
 
NAYS:  ___________________ 
 
ABSENT:  _________________ 
 
 APPROVED by me this 13th day of March, 2023. 
 
             
       ___________________________________ 
       Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
 
ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
and published in pamphlet form 
this ______ day of March, 2023. 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk  
  



1119200_1  

EXHIBIT "A" 

2023 Alley Improvements Project 
Proposal and Specifications 











































Loc # 1 2
900 Block Dunlop‐Lathrop 1100 Block Circle‐Marengo Total

Pay Item Number Pay Item Name Quantity Quantity Quantity  Unit Cost  Total Cost
20200100 EARTH EXCAVATION CY 133 110 243 $  
20201200 REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL OF UNSUITABLE MATERIAL CY 75 85 160 $ $
20700220 POUROUS GRANULAR EMBANKMENT CY 75 85 160 $ $

* 20800250 TRENCH BACKFILL, SPECIAL (CA‐7) CY 220 65 285 $ $
28000510 INLET FILTERS EACH 3 6 9 $ $
31101400 SUBBASE GRANULAR MATERIAL, TYPE B 6" SY 740 855 1595 $ $  

* 42000300 PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE PAVEMENT, 8" SY 740 855 1595 $ $
* 42001650 PAVEMENT FABRIC (SPECIAL) SY 740 855 1595 $ $  
* 42400430 PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE SIDEWALK, 5 INCH SF 75 0 75 $ $

44000600 SIDEWALK REMOVAL SF 75 0 75 $ $
* 44004400 PAVEMENT REMOVAL (SPECIAL) SY 740 855 1595 $ $

44201745 CLASS D PATCHES, TYPE IV, 8" SY 35 0 35 $ $
55100200 STORM SEWER REMOVAL 6" LF 0 10 10 $ $  
60200102 CATCH BASINS, TYPE A, 4'‐DIAMETER, TYPE 1 FRAME, OPEN LID EACH 2 4 6 $ $  
60230104 INLETS, TYPE A, TYPE 1 FRAME, OPEN LID EACH 1 1 2 $   $
60500050 REMOVING CATCH BASINS EACH 0 1 1 $ $  

* 70101700 TRAFFIC CONTROL AND PROTECTION L. SUM 0.5 0.5 1 $   $
* Z00009900 AGGREGATE FOR TEMPORARY ACCESS TON 5 5 10 $ $
* Z0013798 CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT L. SUM 0.5 0.5 1 $ $
* X0326806 WASHOUT BASIN L. SUM 1 1 2 $ $
* XX003668 PRECONSTRUCTION VIDEO TAPING L. SUM 0.5 0.5 1 $ $
* N/A PCC DRIVEWAY REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT, 8" SY 220 330 550 $   $
* N/A HMA DRIVEWAY REMOVAL AND REPLACMENT SY 120 75 195 $ $  
* N/A BRICK DRIVEWAY REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT SF 55 0 55 $ $
* N/A COMBINATION CURB AND GUTTER REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT FOOT 80 0 80 $ $
* N/A DETECTABLE WARNINGS FOR PEDESTRIAN CROSSINGS, FURNISH AND INSTALL EACH 2 0 2 $   $
* N/A STORM SEWERS, 8" (SPECIAL) LF 344 309 653 $ $  
* N/A CORED CONNECTION TO STRUCTURE / SEWER EACH 1 1 2 $   $
* N/A STRUCTURE TO BE ADJUSTED EACH 1 1 2 $   $
* N/A TENSAR TRIAX 130S GEOGRID SY 740 855 1595 $ $
* N/A EDGE SLOPE ADJUSTMENT LF 70 225 295 $ $
* N/A HALF TRAP EACH 1 1 2 $ $
* N/A ITEMS ORDERED BY ENGINEER L. SUM 0.5 0.5 1 $ $  

Sum $

WATER FUND $
VIP FUND $

SP

Summary of Quantities

Unit

Engineer's Estimate

N:\FORESTPARK\0023\BG113\Civil\Spreadsheets\2023 Alley Takeoff Estimates BG113.xlsx



AGENDA MEMO 

Village Council Meeting 

Forest Park, Illinois 

March 13, 2023 

 

Issue Statement  

Request for Village Council Action: Resolution Approving the Specifications and Authorizing the Advertising 
of Bids for the Village of Forest Park 2023 Watermain and Resurfacing Project (Wilcox Street and Ferdinand 
Avenue) 

 
Background 

The 2023 Village Infrastructure Improvements Program includes the replacement of watermains on Wilcox and 
Ferdinand.  With respect to Ferdinand, the watermain on said roadway will be replaced between Harvard and 
Roosevelt; all lead water services along this stretch will be replaced with new copper services from the main to 
the one’s water meter.  North of Harvard on Ferdinand, any existing lead water service between one’s water 
meter and buffalo box will also be replaced with a new copper service.  Once this work is complete, the entire 
length of Ferdinand, between Harrison and Roosevelt, will be resurfaced.  Similar to recent infrastructure 
projects in the Village, all sewers along this corridor will be audited, ensuring that no clogs or imminent failures 
are present, prior to the roadway getting resurfaced.  Also, staff/consulting engineers will also audit all sidewalk 
and corner ramp areas and will perform replacements where warranted in these areas. 

On Wilcox (between Des Plaines and the railroad tracks), the existing 4” water main will be replaced as well as 
all lead water service lines from the main to one’s water meter.  Sewer, sidewalk and roadway improvements 
will also take place on said roadway, similar to Ferdinand. 

The estimated cost of this project, including engineering, amounts to $2.985M - $933,000 from Rebuild Illinois 
Bond monies and $2.052M from the Water/Sewer Fund. 

Upon the Village Council’s adoption of said Resolution, the bid process will commence immediately.  The 
Village Administrator will discuss the Village’s transition to an on-line bidding process starting with this 
project (along with the alley project) at the March 13, 2023 Village Council Meeting. 

Also, it shall be noted that it is quite possible that the watermain work, on both roadways, may be bid separately 
from the roadway improvements.  The reason for this is because the Village is coordinating the watermain 
installations/replacements with the Illinois Department of Transportation’s Des Plaines and Roosevelt Road 
resurfacing projects.  Since these projects are all scheduled for this year, the Village wants to avoid the need to 
tear up newly installed asphalt pavements along Des Plaines and Roosevelt.  For this reason, the watermain 
replacements should commence as soon as possible.  Use of Illinois Rebuild Monies, which the Village has 
already received, also needs approval from IDOT.  Since these monies will cover the roadway portion of the 
project, and may take weeks for IDOT to approve use of same, the watermain work is able to commence sooner 
since local (non-State) monies are being used for this improvement. 

 
Attachments 

- The above referenced Resolution, along with project specifications. 



1119593_1  

RESOLUTION NO. R-__________-23 
 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE SPECIFICATIONS AND  
AUTHORIZING THE ADVERTISING OF BIDS FOR THE  

VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 2023 WATERMAIN AND RESURFACING PROJECT 
(Wilcox Street and Ferdinand Avenue) 

 
 WHEREAS, the Village of Forest Park ("Village") has undertaken a Project to develop 

plans and specifications for the 2023 Watermain and Resurfacing Project in the Village (the 

"Project"); and 

 WHEREAS, the Village desires to approve certain specifications and advertisement for 

bids for the Project. 

 BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Village Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook 

County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. Finding of the Corporate Authorities 

 In the opinion of a majority of the corporate authorities of the Village, it is advisable, 

necessary and in the public interest that the Village approve the specifications, advertise for bids 

and solicit bids for the Project. 

 Section 2. Advertisement for Bids 

 The Village Clerk and Village Engineer, Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd., are 

hereby authorized and directed to cause an advertisement and to solicit bids, pursuant to the public 

bid process and in substantially the form of the 2023 Watermain and Resurfacing Project Contract 

Specifications Package, attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and made a part hereof. 

  



1119593_1  

 Section 3. Effective Date 

 This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval in 

the manner provided by law. 

ADOPTED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 13th 

day of March, 2023. 

AYES:  ___________________ 
 
NAYS:  ___________________ 
 
ABSENT:  _________________ 
 
 APPROVED by me this 13th day of March, 2023. 
 
             
       ___________________________________ 
       Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
 
ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
and published in pamphlet form 
this ______ day of March, 2023. 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk  
  



1119593_1  

EXHIBIT "A" 

2023 Watermain and Resurfacing Project Specifications 
 
 
 

























































Ferdinand Ave & Wilcox St Water Main & Resurf

Summary of Quantities

Design Firm Name: Christopher B. Burke Engineering

Design Firm Project #: 0023.BG105

SP PAY ITEM NO. PAY ITEM NAME UNIT FERDINAND AVE. WILCOX ST TOTAL QUANTITY UNIT COST TOTAL COST

20101100 TREE TRUNK PROTECTION EACH 34 10 44 $          $        

20201200 REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL OF UNSUITABLE MATERIAL CU YD 50 35 85 $           $         

20700220 POROUS GRANULAR EMBANKMENT CU YD 50 35 85 $            $        

20800150 TRENCH BACKFILL CU YD 1250 1000 2250 $            $    

21101615 TOPSOIL FURNISH AND PLACE, 4" SQ YD 2180 986 3166 $              $      

25200110 SODDING, SALT TOLERANT SQ YD 2180 986 3166 $            $      

25200200 SUPPLEMENTAL WATERING UNIT 4 50 54 $           $        

28000510 INLET FILTERS EACH 50 10 60 $          $      

31101180 SUBBASE GRANULAR MATERIAL, TYPE B  2" SQ YD 410 9 419 $            $        

31101200 SUBBASE GRANULAR MATERIAL, TYPE B  4" SQ YD 90 182 272 $           $        

40201000 AGGREGATE FOR TEMPORARY ACCESS TON 20 22 42 $            $         

40600290 BITUMINOUS MATERIALS (TACK COAT) POUND 5910 633 6543 $              $           

40600982 HOT-MIX ASPHALT SURFACE REMOVAL - BUTT JOINT SQ YD 200 0 200 $            $        

40603200 POLYMERIZED HOT-MIX ASPHALT BINDER COURSE, IL-4.75, N50 TON 490 119 609 $          $      

40604060 HOT-MIX ASPHALT SURFACE COURSE, IL-9.5, MIX "D", N50 TON 740 355 1095 $          $    

42300200 PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE DRIVEWAY 6 INCH SQ YD 0 75 75 $          $        

42400200 PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE SIDEWALK 5 INCH SQ FT 3600 3900 7500 $           $      

42400800 DETECTABLE WARNINGS SQ FT 170 120 290 $           $      

44000158 HOT-MIX ASPHALT SURFACE REMOVAL,  2 1/4" SQ YD 8330 2808 11138 $           $    

44000200 DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT REMOVAL SQ YD 0 75 75 $           $           

44000500 COMBINATION CURB AND GUTTER REMOVAL FOOT 2050 675 2725 $             $      

44000600 SIDEWALK REMOVAL SQ FT 3600 3900 7500 $              $      

55100400 STORM SEWER REMOVAL, 10" FOOT 0 104 104 $           $        

55100500 STORM SEWER REMOVAL, 12" FOOT 250 43 293 $           $        

55100700 STORM SEWER REMOVAL, 15" FOOT 55 0 55 $            $        

55100900 STORM SEWER REMOVAL, 18" FOOT 0 22 22 $           $           

56100010 DUCTILE IRON WATER MAIN TEE,   8" X  4" EACH 1 0 1 $          $           

56100015 DUCTILE IRON WATER MAIN TEE,   8" X  6" EACH 2 4 6 $         $        

56100020 DUCTILE IRON WATER MAIN TEE,   8" X  8" EACH 0 1 1 $          $           

56101150 DUCTILE IRON WATER MAIN REDUCER,   8" X  6" EACH 0 3 3 $         $        

* 56103000 DUCTILE IRON WATER MAIN   6" FOOT 40 85 125 $         $      

* 56103100 DUCTILE IRON WATER MAIN   8" FOOT 1360 912 2272 $         $    

* 56103200 DUCTILE IRON WATER MAIN   10" FOOT 10 0 10 $         $        

* 56103300 DUCTILE IRON WATER MAIN   12" FOOT 10 5 15 $         $        

* 56104900 WATER VALVES   6" EACH 0 1 1 $         

* 56105000 WATER VALVES   8" EACH 4 4 8 $      

* 56105100 WATER VALVES  10" EACH 1 0 1 $        

56109420 DUCTILE IRON WATER MAIN FITTINGS 8" 45 DEGREE BEND EACH 5 10 15 $          $      

56300100 ADJUSTING SANITARY SEWERS, 8-INCH DIAMETER OR LESS FOOT 200 100 300 $           $      

* 56400500 FIRE HYDRANTS TO BE REMOVED EACH 2 2 4 $       $        

* 56400820 FIRE HYDRANT WITH AUXILARY VALVE AND VALVE BOX EACH 2 4 6 $      

60218400 MANHOLES, TYPE A, 4'-DIAMETER, TYPE 1 FRAME, CLOSED LID EACH 3 0 3 $      

60249010 VALVE VAULTS, TYPE A, 6'-DIAMETER, TYPE 1 FRAME, CLOSED LID EACH 5 5 10 $      

60257900 MANHOLES TO BE RECONSTRUCTED EACH 13 6 19 $      

60300305 FRAMES AND LIDS TO BE ADJUSTED EACH 52 15 67 $          $      

60603800 COMBINATION CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER, TYPE B-6.12 FOOT 2050 715 2765 $           $    

67100100 MOBILIZATION L SUM 0.5 0.5 1 $      

70102620 TRAFFIC CONTROL AND PROTECTION, STANDARD 701501 L SUM 0.5 0.5 1 $      $        

78000100 THERMOPLASTIC PAVEMENT MARKING - LETTERS AND SYMBOLS SQ FT 10 0 10 $           $           

78000200 THERMOPLASTIC PAVEMENT MARKING - LINE 4" FOOT 420 0 420 $              $        

78000400 THERMOPLASTIC PAVEMENT MARKING - LINE  6" FOOT 590 352 942 $              $        

78000600 THERMOPLASTIC PAVEMENT MARKING - LINE 12" FOOT 0 375 375 $             $        

78000650 THERMOPLASTIC PAVEMENT MARKING - LINE 24" FOOT 250 84 334 $           $        

* X0320050 CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT (SPECIAL) L SUM 0.5 0.5 1 $      

* X0322330 HANDICAP SIGN EACH 2 0 2 $         $           

* X0325366 STORM SEWER REPAIR FOOT 30 0 30 $          $       

* X0326859 PAVEMENT IMPRINTING SQ YD 65 0 65 $         $      

* X0326862 STRUCTURES TO BE ADJUSTED EACH 52 15 67 $         $      

* X0327785 CURED-IN-PLACE PIPE LINER, 12" FOOT 0 606 606 $         $      

* X2130010 EXPLORATION TRENCH (SPECIAL) FOOT 120 80 200 $           $        

* X5610700 WATER MAIN REMOVAL FOOT 30 40 70 $            $        

* X6026622 VALVE VAULTS TO BE REMOVED EACH 4 4 8 $         $        

* X7010216 TRAFFIC CONTROL AND PROTECTION, (SPECIAL) L SUM 0.5 0.5 1 $      

* Z0018700 DRAINAGE STRUCTURE TO BE REMOVED EACH 3 3 6 $         $        

* N/A CLASS D PATCHES, 6 INCH (SPECIAL) SQ YD 800 510 1310 $           $      

* N/A ITEMS ORDERED BY ENGINEER EACH 15000 15000 30000 $             $      

* N/A NON-PRESSURE CONNECTION TO EXISTING WATER MAIN EACH 4 3 7 $       $       

* N/A PLUG AND BLOCK EXISTING WATER MAIN (SPECIAL) EACH 3 4 7 $      $      

* N/A SANITARY SEWER REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT, 12" FOOT 35 85 120 $          $      

* N/A SANITARY SEWER REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT, 15" FOOT 55 0 55 $          $        

* N/A SANITARY SEWER SERVICE 8 INCH DIAMETER REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT, 0-5 LF EACH 10 8 18 $      $      

* N/A STORM SEWER DUCTILE IRON 10" FOOT 0 104 104 $         $      

* N/A STORM SEWER DUCTILE IRON 12" FOOT 250 43 293 $         $      

* N/A STORM SEWER DUCTILE IRON 15" FOOT 55 0 55 $         $        

* N/A STORM SEWER DUCTILE IRON 18" FOOT 0 22 22 $         $        

* N/A SURGE SUPPRESSOR EACH 1 0 1 $       $        

* N/A VIDEO TAPING (INTERIOR AND EXTERIOR) L SUM 0.5 0.5 1 $      $        

* N/A WATER SERVICE INTERIOR RESTORATION EACH 62 29 91 $          $      

* N/A WATER SERVICE LINE (PRIVATE) - LEAD SERVICE REPLACEMENT, 1" EACH 62 29 91

* N/A WATER SERVICE REPLACEMENT WITH NEW BUFFALO BOX, LONG SIDE, 1" EACH 34 17 51

* N/A WATER SERVICE REPLACEMENT WITH NEW BUFFALO BOX, SHORT SIDE, 1" EACH 32 17 49 $   
SUBTOTAL $          TOTAL $   
Watermain $             Watermain $      

Water Services $              $           Water Services $  
Roadway $             Roadway $   

N:\FORESTPARK\0023\BG105\Civil\Spreadsheets\0023_BG105_SOQ_02022023.xlsx



AGENDA MEMO 

Village Council Meeting 

Forest Park, Illinois 

March 13, 2023 

 

Issue Statement  

Request for Village Council Action: Resolution Authorizing the Village of Forest Park to Participate in the New 
National Opioid Settlements and Authorizing the Execution of Related Settlement Agreements with Teva, 
Allergan, CVS, Walgreens and Walmart 

 

Background 

Similar to the other national opioid settlement agreement the Village entered into back in December of 2021 
(for more details regarding same, please click here – starting on page 254), another national opioid settlement 
has been reached with Teva, Allergan, CVS, Walgreens and Walmart. 

The Law Firm of Edelson PC is representing the Village and other government bodies on this matter.  
Additional information about this settlement can be found in the memo dated March 3, 2023 by Edelson.   

 

Attachments 

- Above referenced resolution; 
- Edelson memo dated March 3, 2023 regarding the settlement in question; 
- Additional information regarding the settlement and how to partake in same. 

 

https://www.forestpark.net/dfp/wp-content/uploads/2021/12/121321VillageCouncilPacket.pdf


1119237.1 

RESOLUTION NO. R-___________-23 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK TO 
PARTICIPATE IN THE NEW NATIONAL OPIOID SETTLEMENTS AND 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF RELATED SETTLEMENT AGREEMENTS 
WITH TEVA, ALLERGAN, CVS, WALGREENS AND WALMART 

 
 WHEREAS, the State of Illinois has elected to participate in five (5) proposed national 

opioid settlement agreements (collectively, the “Settlement Agreements”), in order to resolve all 

opioid litigation claims brought by states and local political subdivisions against Teva, Allergan, 

CVS, Walgreens and Walmart (collectively, the “Settling Defendants”); and 

 WHEREAS, the Village of Forest Park (“Village”), as a unit of local government of the 

State of Illinois, is authorized to participate in the Settlement Agreements; and 

WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of the Village find it advisable, necessary and in 

the best interest of the public that the Village opt-in as a participant in the Settlement 

Agreements with the Settling Defendants. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Village of 

Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1. The facts and statements contained in the preamble clauses to this 

Resolution are found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this Resolution. 

 Section 2. The corporate authorities of the Village hereby elect to opt-in to the 

Settlement Agreements, which shall include the proposed Settlement Agreement with each of the 

Settling Defendants, individually. 

Section 3.   The corporate authorities of the Village hereby authorize the Village 

Administrator, or his designee, to execute each of the Settlement Agreements, copies of which 

are attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof, on behalf of the Village. 



1119237.1 

Section 4. The corporate authorities of the Village hereby authorize the Village 

Administrator, or his designee, to execute any agreements, memoranda or other documents and 

take any other action necessary to effectuate the Village’s participation in the Settlement 

Agreements. 

 Section 5. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its adoption, as 

provided by law. 

ADOPTED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 13th 

day of March, 2023. 

 
AYES:  ______________________________________________ 
 
NAYS:  ______________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT: ____________________________________________ 
 
 APPROVED by me this 13th day of March, 2023. 
             
      
 

___________________________________ 
      Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
 
ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
and published in pamphlet form 
This _____ day of March, 2023. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 
  



1119237.1 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Settlement Agreements 
 



Edelson PC 
 

350 North LaSalle Street, 14th Floor, Chicago, Illinois 60654 
t 312.589.6370 | f 312.589.6378 | www.edelson.com 
 

Chicago | San Francisco | Boulder | Washington, D.C.  

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

To:  Village of Forest Park 
 
From:  Edelson PC 
 
Re: National Opioid Settlements - Teva/Allergan/Walgreens/Walmart/CVS   
 
Date:  March 3, 2023 
 

This memo provides an overview of the national opioid settlements recently reached with several 
opioid manufacturers and pharmacies, including Teva, Allergan, CVS, Walmart, and Walgreens.  

Action item: Your municipality has an opportunity to join these settlements and is eligible to 
receive funds, and has until April 18, 2023 to opt in. Please ensure that your municipality has time 
over the next month to approve opting into the settlements. More details about the settlements and 
next steps are below. 

I. Settlement Overview  

The newest round of national opioid settlements was formally announced to subdivisions in 
February 2023 and total over $20 billion to resolve opioid litigation brought by states and local 
subdivisions. The settlements include payments from the following opioid manufacturers and 
pharmacies:  

1. Walgreens to pay up to $5.7 billion over 15 years; 
2. Walmart to pay up to $2.75 billion over 6 years; 
3. CVS to pay up to $5 billion over 10 years; 
4. Teva to pay up to $4.25 billion over 13 years; and 
5. Allergan to pay up to $2.37 billion over 7 years. 

The new settlements are substantially similar in many respects to the prior opioid settlement 
agreements, which your municipality opted into in 2022, with the “Big Three Distributors” 
(McKesson Corp., Cardinal Health, Inc., and AmerisourceBergen Cop.), and Johnson & Johnson’s 
subsidiary Janssen (“J&J”).1 As with the prior settlements, monies will be distributed pursuant to 
the to the terms of the Illinois Opioid Allocation Agreement, explained in more detail below.   

 
1  Payments under the Janssen and Distributor settlements are currently underway with subdivisions receiving 
payments directly via wire or check. Payments from the Distributor settlements will continue over the next 16 years, 
but are likely to be accelerated.  



Edelson PC 
 

350 North LaSalle Street, 14th Floor, Chicago, Illinois 60654 
t 312.589.6370 | f 312.589.6378 | www.edelson.com 
 

Chicago | San Francisco | Boulder | Washington, D.C.  

The entities eligible to participate in settlements include participating States and their local 
governmental entities, referred to as “Subdivisions,” which include counties, municipalities, 
townships, and school districts. The settlement is designed to encourage full participation by States 
and Subdivisions in order to achieve “global peace” and avoid future litigation. The subdivisions 
eligible to receive direct distributions from any settlement funds are found in Exhibits A-1 and A-
2 to the Illinois agreement; and include (i) all Illinois counties, (ii) all litigating municipalities and, 
(iii) non-litigating municipalities with populations over 30,000 or local subdivisions with a 
population between 10,000 to 30,000 which sued one of the Distributors or J&J, but not one of the 
named defendants in the settlements, including Teva, Allergan, Walmart, Walgreens, or CVS).   

Your municipality named Teva and Allergan as defendants and are thus eligible to receive direct 
funds from those settlements. Because your municipality is also a prior litigating subdivision 
against the Distributor defendants and J&J and are listed on A-2 of the Illinois Allocation 
agreement, you are also eligible to receive funds from the Walmart, Walgreens, and CVS 
settlements. Illinois has not yet announced how much the state is set to receive from each of the 
settlements, so it is currently too early to project at this time what your municipality may receive.2 
We will follow up with allocation amounts as soon as they are made available.      

II. Recommendation & Next Steps  

Based on information to date, we believe the Village of Forest Park should participate in the 
settlements. We believe these settlements represent the best solution under the circumstances and 
considering the risks of pursuing separate litigation against these defendants.  

For municipalities that choose not participate, Judge Polster has mandated that Subdivisions would 
have to produce a broad swath of financial data and other records to support its claims and damages 
within an extremely limited timeframe. In addition, Illinois has passed legislation specifically 
dealing with national opioid settlements, which (i) bars subdivisions from pursuing opioid claims 
against a defendant subject to a national opioid settlement unless approved of by the Attorney 
General, and (ii) gives the Attorney General the power to intervene in cases to dismiss any opioid 
claims against defendants subject to multistate settlements like the ones proposed here. See 735 
ILCS 5/13-226. Specifically, this means that if your Subdivision elected not participate in the 
settlement, there is a serious risk that your case could not proceed in litigation, which would leave 
the Village with nothing. We believe this counsels strongly in favor of accepting the settlement.  

As far as next steps, the settlements require that the Village of Forest Park take affirmative steps 
to “opt in” and participate in the settlements by April 18, 2023.3  

 
2  Under the Illinois Allocation agreement, 15% of the State’s total recovery is divvied up among 
subdivisions.  

3  Participation agreements were released on Friday, February 15, 2023 meaning that subdivisions may now 
officially opt in to the settlements. 



National Opioid Settlements: Teva, Allergan, CVS, Walgreens, and Walmart

Forest Park village, IL
Reference Number: CL-384249

TO LOCAL POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS AND SPECIAL DISTRICTS: 
THIS NOTICE CONTAINS IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT NATIONAL OPIOID SETTLEMENTS. 

SETTLEMENT OVERVIEW

Proposed nationwide settlement agreements (“Settlements”) have been reached that would resolve opioid 
litigation brought by states, local political subdivisions, and special districts against two pharmaceutical 
manufacturers, Teva and Allergan (“Manufacturers”), and three pharmacies, CVS, Walgreens, and 
Walmart (“Pharmacies”). Local political subdivisions and special districts are referred to as “subdivisions.”

The Settlements require the settling Manufacturers and Pharmacies to pay billions of dollars to abate the 
opioid epidemic. The Settlements total over $20 billion. Of this amount, approximately $17 billion will be 
used by participating states and subdivisions to remediate and abate the impacts of the opioid crisis. 
Depending on participation by states and subdivisions, the Settlements require:

 Teva to pay up to $3.34 billion over 13 years and to provide either $1.2 billion of its generic version
of the drug Narcan over 10 years or an agreed upon cash equivalent over 13 years; 

 Allergan to pay up to $2.02 billion over 7 years; 
 CVS to pay up to $4.90 billion over 10 years; 
 Walgreens to pay up to $5.52 billion over 15 years; and
 Walmart to pay up to $2.74 billion in 2023, and all payments to be made within 6 years.

As provided under the Agreements, these figures are net of amounts attributable to prior settlements 
between the Defendants and certain states/subdivisions, and include amounts for attorneys’ fees and 
costs.

The Settlements also contain injunctive relief governing opioid marketing, sale, distribution, and/or 
dispensing practices.

Each of the proposed settlements has two key participation steps.  

First, each eligible state decides whether to participate in each Settlement. A list of participating states for 
each settlement can be found at https://nationalopioidsettlement.com.

Second, eligible subdivisions within each participating state decide whether to participate in each 
Settlement. The more subdivisions that participate, the more funds flow to that state and its subdivisions. 
Any subdivision that does not participate cannot directly share in any of the settlement funds, even if the 
subdivision’s state is settling and other participating subdivisions are sharing in settlement funds. If the 
state does not participate in a particular Settlement, the subdivisions in that state are not eligible to 
participate in that Settlement.

https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/


WHO IS RUBRIS INC. AND WHAT IS THE IMPLEMENTATION ADMINISTRATOR?

The Settlements provide that an Implementation Administrator will provide notice and manage the 
collection of participation forms. Rubris Inc. is the Implementation Administrator for these new Settlements 
and was also retained for the 2021 national opioid settlements.

WHY IS YOUR SUBDIVISION RECEIVING THIS NOTICE?

Your state has elected to participate in one or more of the Settlements with the Manufacturers and/or the 
Pharmacies, and your subdivision may participate in those Settlements in which your state has elected to 
participate. This notice is also sent directly to counsel for such subdivisions if the Implementation 
Administrator has their information.

If you are represented by an attorney with respect to opioid claims, please contact them. Subdivisions 
can participate in the Settlements whether or not they filed a lawsuit or are represented. 

WHERE CAN YOU FIND MORE INFORMATION?

Detailed information about the Settlements, including each settlement agreement, may be found at: 
https://nationalopioidsettlement.com. This website also includes information about how the Settlements 
are being implemented in most states and how funds will be allocated within your state. 

You are encouraged to review the settlement agreement terms and discuss the terms and benefits with 
your counsel, your Attorney General’s Office, and other contacts within your state. Information and 
documents regarding the Settlements and your state allocation can be found on the settlement website at 
https://nationalopioidsettlement.com.

Your subdivision will need to decide whether to participate in the proposed Settlements, and subdivisions 
are encouraged to work through this process before the April 18, 2023 deadline.

HOW DO YOU PARTICIPATE IN THE SETTLEMENTS?

The Settlements require that you take affirmative steps to “opt in” to the Settlements. 

In the next few weeks, you will receive documentation and instructions from the Implementation 
Administrator or, in some cases, your Attorney General’s Office. In order to participate in a settlement, a 
subdivision must sign and return the required Participation Form for that settlement.

Please add the following email addresses to your “safe” list so emails do not go to spam / junk folders: 
dse_na3@docusign.net   and   opioidsparticipation@rubris.com  . Please monitor your email for the   
Participation Forms and instructions. 

All required documentation must be signed and returned on or before April 18, 2023. 

mailto:opioidsparticipation@rubris.com
mailto:dse_na3@docusign.net
https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/
https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/


New National Opioids Settlements: Teva, Allergan, CVS, Walgreens, and Walmart
Opioids Implementation Administrator
opioidsparticipation@rubris.com

Forest Park village, IL
Reference Number: CL-384249

TO LOCAL POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS AND SPECIAL DISTRICTS:
 

THIS PACKAGE CONTAINS DOCUMENTATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE NEW
NATIONAL OPIOID SETTLEMENTS. YOU MUST TAKE ACTION IN ORDER TO

PARTICIPATE.

Deadline: April 18, 2023

Five new proposed national opioid settlements (“New National Opioid Settlements”)
have  been  reached  with  Teva,  Allergan,  CVS,  Walgreens,  and  Walmart
(“Settling Defendants”). This Participation Package is a follow-up communication to
the  Notice of National Opioid Settlements  recently received electronically by your
subdivision or special district (“subdivision”). 

You are receiving this  Participation Package  because Illinois is participating in the
following settlements:

 Teva
 Allergan
 CVS
 Walgreens
 Walmart

If a state does not participate in a particular Settlement, the subdivisions in that
state are not eligible to participate in that Settlement.

This electronic envelope contains: 

 Participation  Forms for  Teva,  Allergan,  CVS,  Walgreens,  and  Walmart,
including a release of any claims. 

 The Illinois Opioid Allocation Agreement

The  Participation Form  for  each  settlement must  be  executed,  without
alteration, and submitted on or before April 18, 2023, in order for your
subdivision  to  be  considered  for  initial  participation  calculations  and
payment eligibility. 

Based upon subdivision participation forms received on or  before April  18th,  the
subdivision participation rate will  be used to determine whether participation for
each deal is sufficient for the settlement to move forward and whether a state earns
its  maximum potential  payment  under  the  settlement.  If  the  settlement  moves
forward, your release will become effective. If a settlement does not move forward,
that release will not become effective. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2

mailto:opioidsparticipation@rubris.com


Any subdivision that does  not participate cannot directly share in the settlement
funds, even if the subdivision’s state is settling and other participating subdivisions
are sharing in settlement funds. Any subdivision that does not participate may also
reduce the amount of money for programs to remediate the opioid crisis in its state.
Please note, a subdivision will not necessarily directly receive settlement funds by
participating; decisions on how settlement funds will be allocated within a state are
subject to intrastate agreements or state statutes.

You are encouraged to discuss the terms and benefits of the New National Opioid
Settlements with your counsel, your Attorney General’s Office, and other contacts
within your state. 

Monies coming to Illinois from the New National Opioid Settlements will be allocated
in  accordance  with  the  Illinois  Opioid  Allocation  Agreement,  a  copy of  which  is
included  with  this  packet  for  your  reference.   As  stated  above,  even  if  your
subdivision is listed in the Allocation Agreement as one eligible to receive a direct
share  of  opioid  settlement  monies,  you  still  must  sign each of  the Participation
Forms for these five settlements in order to receive a direct distribution under each
of the settlements.  Additionally, please note that pursuant to Paragraphs 2.B and
2.C of the Illinois Opioid Allocation Agreement, when notified by the Illinois Attorney
General that Illinois has reached a settlement with one or more Opioid Defendants,
participating  local  governments  shall  release  their  claims  against  such  Opioid
Defendant(s). 

Information and documents regarding the New National Opioid Settlements can be
found on the national settlement website at https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/. 
This website will be supplemented as additional documents are created.   

How to return signed forms:

There are three methods for returning the executed  Participation Forms and any
supporting documentation to the Implementation Administrator:

(1) Electronic  Signature  via  DocuSign:  Executing  the  Participation  Forms
electronically  through  DocuSign  will  return  the  signed  forms  to  the
Implementation  Administrator  and  associate  your  forms  with  your
subdivision’s records.  Electronic signature is the most efficient method for
returning Participation Forms, allowing for more timely participation and the
potential  to  meet  higher  settlement payment thresholds,  and is  therefore
strongly encouraged. 

(2) Manual  Signature  returned  via  DocuSign:  DocuSign  allows  forms  to  be
downloaded,  signed  manually,  then  uploaded  to  DocuSign  and  returned
automatically  to  the  Implementation  Administrator.  Please  be  sure  to
complete all fields. As with electronic signature, returning manually signed
Participation Forms via DocuSign will associate your signed forms with your
subdivision’s records.

DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2

https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/


(3) Manual Signature returned via electronic mail: If your subdivision is unable to
return  executed  Participation  Forms using  DocuSign,  signed  Participation
Forms may  be  returned  via  electronic  mail  to
opioidsparticipation@rubris.com. Please  include  the  name,  state,  and
reference ID of your subdivision in the body of the email and use the subject
line Settlement Participation Forms – [Subdivision Name, Subdivision State] –
[Reference ID].

Detailed instructions on how to sign and return the Participation Forms, including 
changing the authorized signer, can be found at 
https://nationalopioidsettlement.com. You may also contact 
opioidsparticipation@rubris.com.

The sign-on period for subdivisions ends on April 18, 2023. 

If you have any questions about executing these forms, please contact your 
counsel, the Implementation Administrator at opioidsparticipation@rubris.com, or 
the Illinois Attorney General’s Office at opioidsettlement@ilag.gov.
  

Thank you, 
 
National Opioids Settlements Implementation Administrator  

The  Implementation  Administrator  is retained  to  provide  the  settlement  notice
required by the respective settlement agreements referenced above and to manage
the collection of settlement participation forms for each settlement.

DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2

mailto:opioidsettlement@ilag.gov
mailto:opioidsparticipation@rubris.com
mailto:opioidsparticipation@rubris.com
https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/
mailto:opioidsparticipation@rubris.com


EXHIBIT         K      
Subdivision     and     Special     District     Settlement         Participation         Form      

Will your subdivision or special district be signing the settlement participation forms for the Allergan and
Teva Settlements at this time?

[  ] Yes_ta   [  ] No_ta

Governmental Entity: Forest Park village State: IL
Authorized Signatory: /officialname_teva_allergan/
Address 1: /address1_teva_allergan/
Address 2: /address2_teva_allergan/
City, State, Zip: /cit_ta/                                     /state_ta/                       /zi_ta/
Phone: /phone_teva_allergan/
Email: /email_teva_allergan/

The  governmental  entity  identified  above  (“Governmental  Entity”),  in  order  to  obtain  and  in
consideration for the benefits provided to the Governmental Entity pursuant to the Agreement dated
November 22, 2022 (“Allergan Settlement”), and acting through the undersigned authorized official,
hereby elects to participate in the Allergan Settlement, release all Released Claims against all Released
Entities, and agrees as follows.

1. The Governmental Entity is aware of and has reviewed the Allergan Settlement, understands
that all terms in this Election and Release have the meanings defined therein, and agrees that
by this Election, the Governmental Entity elects to participate in the Allergan Settlement as
provided therein.

2. Following the execution of this Settlement Participation Form, the Governmental Entity shall
comply  with  Section  III.B  of  the  Allergan  Settlement  regarding  Cessation  of  Litigation
Activities.

3. The Governmental Entity shall, within fourteen (14) days of the Reference Date and prior to
the filing of the Consent Judgment, file a request  to dismiss  with prejudice any Released
Claims  that  it  has  filed.  With  respect  to  any Released  Claims  pending in  In  re  National
Prescription Opiate Litigation, MDL No. 2804, the Governmental Entity authorizes the MDL
Plaintiffs’ Executive Committee to execute and file on behalf of the Governmental Entity a
Stipulation of  Dismissal  With Prejudice substantially  in the form found at
https://nationalopioidsettlement.com.

4. The  Governmental  Entity  agrees  to  the  terms  of  the  Allergan  Settlement  pertaining  to
Subdivisions and Special Districts as defined therein.

5. By  agreeing  to  the  terms  of  the  Allergan  Settlement  and  becoming  a  Releasor,  the
Governmental  Entity is  entitled  to  the  benefits  provided  therein,  including,  if  applicable,
monetary payments beginning after the Effective Date.

6. The Governmental Entity agrees to use any monies it receives through the Allergan Settlement
solely for the purposes provided therein.

1

DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2

https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/


7. The Governmental Entity submits to the jurisdiction of the court in the Governmental Entity’s
state where the Consent Judgment is filed for purposes limited to that court’s role as provided
in, and for resolving disputes to the extent provided in, the Allergan Settlement.

8. The Governmental Entity has the right to enforce the Allergan Settlement as provided therein.

9. The  Governmental  Entity, as a  Participating  Subdivision  or  Participating  Special  District,
hereby becomes a Releasor for all  purposes in  the Allergan Settlement, including,  but  not
limited to, all provisions of Section V (Release),  and along with all departments, agencies,
divisions,  boards, commissions, Subdivisions,  districts,  instrumentalities  of any  kind  and
attorneys, and any person in their official capacity whether elected or appointed to serve any of
the foregoing and any agency, person, or other entity claiming by or through any of  the
foregoing, and any other entity identified in the definition of Releasor, provides for a release to
the fullest extent of its authority. As a Releasor, the Governmental Entity hereby absolutely,
unconditionally, and irrevocably covenants not to bring, file, or claim, or to cause, assist in
bringing, or permit to be brought, filed, or claimed, or to otherwise seek to establish liability
for any Released Claims against any Released Entity in any forum whatsoever.  The releases
provided for in the Allergan Settlement are intended to be broad and shall be interpreted so as
to give the Released Entities the broadest possible bar against any liability relating in any way
to Released Claims and extend to the full extent of the power of the Governmental Entity to
release claims. The Allergan Settlement shall be a complete bar to any Released Claim.

10. The  Governmental  Entity  hereby  takes  on  all  rights  and  obligations  of  a  Participating
Subdivision or Participating Special District as set forth in the Allergan Settlement.

11. In connection with the releases provided for in the Allergan Settlement, each Governmental
Entity expressly waives, releases, and forever discharges any and all provisions, rights, and
benefits conferred by any law of any state or territory of the United States or other jurisdiction,
or principle of common law, which is similar, comparable, or equivalent to § 1542 of the
California Civil Code, which reads:

General Release; extent. A general release does not extend to claims that the
creditor or releasing party does not know or suspect to exist in his or her favor
at the time of executing the release that, if known by him or her, would have
materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor or released party.

A Releasor may hereafter discover facts other than or different from those which it knows,
believes, or assumes to be true with respect to the Released Claims, but each Governmental
Entity hereby expressly waives and fully, finally, and forever settles, releases and discharges,
upon the Effective Date, any and all Released Claims that may exist as of such date but which
Releasors  do  not  know  or  suspect  to  exist,  whether  through  ignorance,  oversight, error,
negligence or through no fault whatsoever, and which, if known, would materially affect the
Governmental Entities’ decision to participate in the Allergan Settlement.

12. Nothing herein is intended to modify in any way the terms of the Allergan Settlement, to
which the Governmental Entity hereby agrees. To the extent this  Settlement Participation
Form is  interpreted  differently from the  Allergan  Settlement  in  any  respect,  the  Allergan
Settlement controls.

2

DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



I have all necessary power and authorization to execute this Settlement Participation Form on behalf 
of the Governmental Entity.

Signature: /signer_1_teva_allergan/                            

Name: /name_1_teva_allergan/                               

Title: /title_1_teva_allergan/                                 

Date: /date_1_teva_allergan/                                 

3

DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



Exhibit         K      
Subdivision     and     Special     District     Settlement         Participation         Form      

Governmental Entity: Forest Park village State: IL
Authorized Signatory: /officialname_teva_allergan/
Address 1: /address1_teva_allergan/
Address 2: /address2_teva_allergan/
City, State, Zip: /cit_ta/                                     /state_ta/                       /zi_ta/
Phone: /phone_teva_allergan/
Email: /email_teva_allergan/

The  governmental  entity identified above  (“Governmental  Entity”), in  order  to obtain  and  in
consideration for the benefits provided to the Governmental Entity pursuant  to the Agreement
dated November 22, 2022 (“Teva Settlement”), and acting through the undersigned authorized
official, hereby elects to participate in the Teva Settlement, release all Released Claims against all
Released Entities, and agrees as follows.

1. The Governmental Entity is aware of and has reviewed the Teva Settlement, understands that
all terms in this Election and Release have the meanings defined therein, and agrees that by
this Election, the Governmental Entity elects to participate in the Teva Settlement as provided
therein.

2. Following the execution of this Settlement Participation Form, the Governmental Entity shall
comply with Section III.B of the Teva Settlement regarding Cessation of Litigation Activities.

3. The Governmental Entity shall, within 14 days of the Reference Date and prior to the filing of
the Consent Judgment, file a request to dismiss with prejudice any Released Claims that it has
filed.  With respect  to any Released Claims pending in In re National  Prescription Opiate
Litigation,  MDL No.  2804,  the  Governmental  Entity  authorizes  the  Plaintiffs’ Executive
Committee to execute and file on behalf of the Governmental Entity a Stipulation of Dismissal
With Prejudice substantially in the form found at https://nationalopioidsettlement.com.

4. The  Governmental  Entity  agrees  to  the  terms  of  the  Teva  Settlement  pertaining  to
Subdivisions as defined therein.

5. By agreeing to the terms of the Teva Settlement and becoming a Releasor, the Governmental
Entity is entitled to the benefits provided therein, including, if applicable, monetary payments
beginning after the Effective Date.

6. The Governmental Entity agrees to use any monies it receives through the Teva Settlement
solely for the purposes provided therein.

7. The Governmental Entity submits to the jurisdiction of the court in the Governmental Entity’s
state where the Consent Judgment is filed for purposes limited to that court’s role as provided
in, and for resolving disputes to the extent provided in, the Teva Settlement.

1

DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2

https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/


8. The Governmental Entity has the right to enforce the Teva Settlement as provided therein.

9. The Governmental Entity, as a Participating Subdivision or Participating Special  District,
hereby becomes a Releasor for all purposes in the Teva Settlement, including but not limited
to all provisions of Section V (Release), and along with all departments, agencies, divisions,
boards, commissions, districts, instrumentalities of any kind and attorneys, and any person in
their official capacity elected or appointed to serve any of the foregoing and any agency,
person,  or  other entity claiming by or through any of the foregoing, and any other entity
identified in  the  definition of  Releasor, provides  for  a  release  to  the  fullest  extent  of  its
authority.  As a Releasor, the Governmental  Entity hereby absolutely,  unconditionally,  and
irrevocably covenants not to bring, file, or claim, or to cause, assist or permit to be brought,
filed, or claimed, or to otherwise seek to establish liability for any Released Claims against
any  Released  Entity  in  any  forum  whatsoever.  The  releases  provided  for  in  the  Teva
Settlement are intended by Released Entitles and the Governmental Entity to be broad and
shall be interpreted so as to give the Released Entities the broadest possible bar against any
liability relating in any way to Released Claims and extend to the full extent of the power of
the Governmental Entity to release claims. The Teva Settlement shall be a complete bar to
any Released Claim.

10. The  Governmental  Entity  hereby  takes  on  all  rights  and  obligations  of  a  Participating
Subdivision or Participating Special District as set forth in the Teva Settlement.

11. In connection with the releases provided for in the Teva Settlement, each Governmental Entity
expressly waives, releases, and forever discharges any and all provisions, rights, and benefits
conferred by any law of any state or territory of the United States or other jurisdiction, or
principle  of  common law,  which  is  similar, comparable,  or  equivalent  to  § 1542  of the
California Civil Code, which reads:

General Release; extent. A general release does not extend to claims
that the creditor or releasing party does not know or suspect to exist in
his or her favor at the time of executing the release that, if known by
him or her, would have materially affected his or her settlement with
the debtor or released party.

A Releasor may hereafter discover facts other than or different from those which it knows,
believes, or assumes to be true with respect to the Released Claims, but each Governmental
Entity hereby expressly waives and fully, finally, and forever settles, releases and discharges,
upon the Effective Date, any and all Released Claims that may exist as of such date but which
Releasors do not know or suspect  to exist, whether through  ignorance,  oversight,  error,
negligence or through no fault whatsoever, and which, if known, would materially affect the
Governmental Entities’ decision to participate in the Teva Settlement.

12. Nothing herein is intended to modify in any way the terms of the Teva Settlement, to which
Governmental  Entity  hereby  agrees.  To  the  extent  this  Election  and  Release  is  interpreted
differently from the Teva Settlement in any respect, the Teva Settlement controls.

2

DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



I have all necessary power and authorization to execute this Election and Release on behalf of the 
Governmental Entity.

Signature: /signer_1_teva_allergan/                            

Name: /name_1_teva_allergan/                               

Title: /title_1_teva_allergan/                                 

Date: /date_1_teva_allergan/                                 

3

DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



EXHIBIT     K      

Subdivision     Participation     and     Release     Form      

Will your subdivision or special district be signing the settlement participation form for the CVS 
Settlement at this time?

[  ] Yes_cv   [  ] No_cv

Governmental Entity: Forest Park village State: IL
Authorized Signatory: /officialname_cvs/
Address 1: /address1_cvs/
Address 2: /address2_cvs/
City, State, Zip: /cit_cv/                                   /state_cv/                     /zi_cv/
Phone: /phone_cvs/
Email: /email_cvs/

The governmental entity identified above (“Governmental Entity”), in order to obtain and in
consideration  for  the  benefits  provided  to  the  Governmental  Entity  pursuant  to  the  Settlement
Agreement dated December 9, 2022 (“CVS Settlement”), and acting through the undersigned authorized
official, hereby elects to participate in the CVS Settlement, release all Released Claims against all
Released Entities, and agrees as follows.

1. The Governmental Entity is aware of and has reviewed the CVS Settlement, understands that all
terms in this Participation and Release Form have the meanings defined therein, and agrees that
by executing this Participation and Release Form, the Governmental Entity elects to participate
in the CVS Settlement and become a Participating Subdivision as provided therein.

2. The Governmental  Entity shall  promptly,  and in any event  no later  than 14 days after  the
Reference Date and prior to the filing of the Consent Judgment, dismiss with prejudice any
Released  Claims  that  it  has  filed. With  respect  to  any Released  Claims  pending in  In  re
National Prescription Opiate Litigation, MDL No. 2804, the Governmental Entity authorizes
the Plaintiffs’ Executive Committee to execute and file on behalf of the Governmental Entity a
Stipulation  of  Dismissal  with  Prejudice  substantially  in  the  form  found  at
https://nationalopioidsettlement.com.

3. The Governmental Entity agrees to the terms of the CVS Settlement pertaining to Participating
Subdivisions as defined therein.

4. By agreeing to the terms of the CVS Settlement and becoming a Releasor, the Governmental
Entity is entitled to the benefits provided therein, including, if applicable, monetary payments
beginning after the Effective Date.

5. The Governmental Entity agrees to use any monies it receives through the CVS Settlement
solely for the purposes provided therein.

1

DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2

https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/


6. The Governmental Entity submits to the jurisdiction of the court in the Governmental Entity’s
state where the Consent Judgment is filed for purposes limited to that court’s role as provided in,
and for resolving disputes to the extent provided in, the CVS Settlement. The Governmental
Entity likewise agrees to arbitrate before the National Arbitration Panel as provided in, and for
resolving disputes to the extent otherwise provided in, the CVS Settlement.

7. The Governmental Entity has the right to enforce the CVS Settlement as provided therein.

8. The Governmental Entity, as a Participating Subdivision, hereby becomes a Releasor for all
purposes  in  the  CVS Settlement,  including without  limitation all  provisions  of  Section XI
(Release), and along with all departments, agencies, divisions, boards, commissions, districts,
instrumentalities of any kind and attorneys, and any person in their official capacity elected or
appointed to serve any of the foregoing and any agency, person, or other entity claiming by or
through any of the foregoing, and any other entity identified in the definition of Releasor,
provides for a release to the fullest extent of its authority. As a Releasor, the Governmental
Entity  hereby  absolutely,  unconditionally,  and  irrevocably  covenants  not  to  bring,  file,  or
claim, or to cause, assist or permit to be brought, filed, or claimed, or to otherwise seek to
establish  liability  for  any  Released  Claims  against  any  Released Entity in any forum
whatsoever. The releases provided for in the CVS Settlement are intended by the Parties to be
broad and shall  be interpreted so as to give the Released Entities the broadest possible bar
against any liability relating in any way to Released Claims and extend to the full extent of the
power of the Governmental Entity to release claims. The CVS Settlement shall be a complete
bar to any Released Claim.

9. The  Governmental  Entity  hereby  takes  on  all  rights  and  obligations  of  a  Participating
Subdivision as set forth in the CVS Settlement.

10. In connection with the releases provided for in the CVS Settlement, each Governmental Entity
expressly waives, releases, and forever discharges any and all provisions, rights, and benefits
conferred by any law of  any state or territory of  the United States  or  other jurisdiction,  or
principle  of  common law, which is similar, comparable,  or equivalent to  § 1542 of the
California Civil Code, which reads:

General Release; extent. A general release does not extend to claims that
the creditor or releasing party does not know or suspect to exist in his or her
favor at the time of executing the release that, if known by him or her would
have materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor or released
party.

A Releasor  may hereafter  discover  facts  other  than  or  different  from those  which  it  knows,
believes, or assumes to be true with respect to the Released Claims, but each Governmental Entity
hereby expressly waives and fully, finally, and forever settles, releases and discharges, upon the
Effective Date, any and all Released Claims that may exist as of such date but which Releasors do
not know or suspect to exist, whether through ignorance, oversight, error, negligence or through no
fault  whatsoever,  and  which,  if  known,  would  materially  affect  the  Governmental  Entities’
decision to participate in the CVS Settlement.

2

DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



11. Nothing herein is intended to modify in any way the terms of the CVS Settlement, to which
Governmental  Entity  hereby  agrees. To  the  extent  this  Participation  and  Release  Form  is
interpreted differently from the CVS Settlement in any respect, the CVS Settlement controls.

I have all necessary power and authorization to execute this Participation and Release Form on 
behalf of the Governmental Entity.

Signature: /signer_1_cvs/                                            

Name: /name_1_cvs/                                               

Title: /title_1_cvs/                                                 

Date: /date_1_cvs/                                                 

3

DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



EXHIBIT     K      

Subdivision     Participation     and     Release     Form      

Will your subdivision or special district be signing the settlement participation form for the Walgreens 
Settlement at this time?

[  ] Yes_wg   [  ] No_wg

Governmental Entity: Forest Park village State: IL
Authorized Signatory: /officialname_walgreens/
Address 1: /address1_ walgreens/
Address 2: /address2_ walgreens/
City, State, Zip: /cit_wg/                                    /state_wg/                       /zi_wg/
Phone: /phone_walgreens/
Email: /email_walgreens/

The governmental entity identified above (“Governmental Entity”), in order to obtain and in
consideration  for  the  benefits  provided  to  the  Governmental  Entity  pursuant  to  the  Settlement
Agreement dated December 9, 2022 (“Walgreens Settlement”),  and acting through the undersigned
authorized  official,  hereby  elects  to  participate  in  the  Walgreens  Settlement,  release  all  Released
Claims against all Released Entities, and agrees as follows.

1. The Governmental Entity is aware of and has reviewed the Walgreens Settlement, understands
that all terms in this Participation and Release Form have the meanings defined therein, and
agrees that by executing this Participation and Release Form, the Governmental Entity elects to
participate in the Walgreens Settlement and become a Participating Subdivision as provided
therein.

2. The Governmental  Entity shall  promptly,  and in any event  no later  than 14 days after  the
Reference Date and prior to the filing of the Consent Judgment, dismiss with prejudice any
Released  Claims  that  it  has  filed. With  respect  to  any Released  Claims  pending in  In  re
National Prescription Opiate Litigation, MDL No. 2804, the Governmental Entity authorizes
the Plaintiffs’ Executive Committee to execute and file on behalf of the Governmental Entity a
Stipulation  of  Dismissal  with  Prejudice  substantially  in  the  form  found  at
https://nationalopioidsettlement.com.

3. The  Governmental  Entity  agrees  to  the  terms  of  the  Walgreens  Settlement  pertaining  to
Participating Subdivisions as defined therein.

4. By  agreeing  to  the  terms  of  the  Walgreens  Settlement  and  becoming  a  Releasor,  the
Governmental  Entity  is  entitled  to  the  benefits  provided  therein,  including,  if  applicable,
monetary payments beginning after the Effective Date.

5. The  Governmental  Entity  agrees  to  use  any  monies  it  receives  through  the  Walgreens
Settlement solely for the purposes provided therein.

1

DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2

https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/


6. The Governmental Entity submits to the jurisdiction of the court in the Governmental Entity’s
state where the Consent Judgment is filed for purposes limited to that court’s role as provided in,
and  for  resolving  disputes  to  the  extent  provided  in,  the  Walgreens  Settlement. The
Governmental  Entity  likewise  agrees  to  arbitrate  before  the  National  Arbitration  Panel  as
provided  in,  and  for  resolving  disputes  to  the  extent  otherwise  provided  in,  the  Walgreens
Settlement.

7. The Governmental Entity has the right to enforce the Walgreens Settlement as provided therein.

8. The Governmental Entity, as a Participating Subdivision, hereby becomes a Releasor for all
purposes in the Walgreens Settlement, including without limitation all provisions of Section XI
(Release), and along with all departments, agencies, divisions, boards, commissions, districts,
instrumentalities of any kind and attorneys, and any person in their official capacity elected or
appointed to serve any of the foregoing and any agency, person, or other entity claiming by or
through any of the foregoing,  and any other entity identified in the definition of Releasor,
provides for a release to the fullest extent of its authority. As a Releasor, the Governmental
Entity  hereby  absolutely,  unconditionally,  and  irrevocably  covenants  not  to  bring,  file,  or
claim, or to cause, assist or permit to be brought, filed, or claimed, or to otherwise seek to
establish  liability  for  any  Released  Claims  against  any  Released  Entity  in  any  forum
whatsoever. The releases provided for in the Walgreens Settlement are intended by the Parties
to be broad and shall be interpreted so as to give the Released Entities the broadest possible bar
against any liability relating in any way to Released Claims and extend to the full extent of the
power of the Governmental Entity to release claims. The Walgreens Settlement shall be a
complete bar to any Released Claim.

9. The  Governmental  Entity  hereby  takes  on  all  rights  and  obligations  of  a  Participating
Subdivision as set forth in the Walgreens Settlement.

10. In connection with the releases provided for in the Walgreens Settlement, each Governmental
Entity expressly waives, releases, and forever discharges any and all provisions, rights, and
benefits conferred by any law of any state or territory of the United States or other jurisdiction,
or principle of common law, which is  similar,  comparable,  or  equivalent  to § 1542 of the
California Civil Code, which reads:

General Release; extent. A general release does not extend to claims that the
creditor or releasing party does not know or suspect to exist in his or her favor
at the time of executing the release that, if known by him or her would have
materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor or released party.

A Releasor may hereafter discover facts other than or different from those which it knows,
believes, or assumes to be true with respect to the Released Claims, but each Governmental
Entity hereby expressly waives and fully, finally, and forever settles, releases and discharges,
upon the Effective Date, any and all Released Claims that may exist as of such date but which
Releasors  do  not  know  or  suspect  to  exist,  whether  through  ignorance,  oversight,  error,
negligence or through no fault whatsoever, and which, if known, would materially affect the
Governmental Entities’ decision to participate in the Walgreens Settlement.

2

DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



11. Nothing herein is intended to modify in any way the terms of the Walgreens Settlement, to
which Governmental Entity hereby agrees. To the extent this Participation and Release Form
is  interpreted  differently  from  the  Walgreens  Settlement  in  any  respect,  the  Walgreens
Settlement controls.

I have all necessary power and authorization to execute this Participation and Release Form on 
behalf of the Governmental Entity.

Signature: /signer_1_walgreens/                                 

Name: /name_1_walgreens/                                    

Title: /title_1_walgreens/                                       

Date: /date_1_walgreens/                                      

3

DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



EXHIBIT     K      

Subdivision     Participation   Form      

Will your subdivision or special district be signing the settlement participation form for the Walmart 
Settlement at this time?

[  ] Yes_wm   [  ] No_wm

Governmental Entity: Forest Park village State: IL
Authorized Official: /officialname_walmart/
Address 1: /address1_walmart/
Address 2: /address2_walmart/
City, State, Zip: /cit_wm/                                     /state_wm/                       /zi_wm/
Phone: /phone_walmart/
Email: /email_walmart/

The governmental entity identified above (“Governmental Entity”), in order to obtain and in 
consideration for the benefits provided to the Governmental Entity pursuant to the Settlement 
Agreement dated November 14, 2022 (“Walmart Settlement”), and acting through the undersigned 
authorized official, hereby elects to participate in the Walmart Settlement, release all Released Claims
against all Released Entities, and agrees as follows.

1.  The Governmental Entity is aware of and has reviewed the Walmart Settlement, understands 
that all terms in this Election and Release have the meanings defined therein, and agrees that 
by this Election, the Governmental Entity elects to participate in the Walmart Settlement and 
become a Participating Subdivision as provided therein.

2.  The Governmental Entity shall promptly, and in any event within 14 days of the Effective 
Date and prior to the filing of the Consent Judgment, dismiss with prejudice any Released 
Claims that it has filed. With respect to any Released Claims pending in In re National 
Prescription Opiate Litigation, MDL No. 2804, the Governmental Entity authorizes the 
Plaintiffs’ Executive Committee to execute and file on behalf of the Governmental Entity a 
Stipulation of Dismissal With Prejudice substantially in the form found at 
https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/.

3.  The Governmental Entity agrees to the terms of the Walmart Settlement pertaining to 
Subdivisions as defined therein.

4.  By agreeing to the terms of the Walmart Settlement and becoming a Releasor, the 
Governmental Entity is entitled to the benefits provided therein, including, if applicable, 
monetary payments beginning after the Effective Date.

5.  The Governmental Entity agrees to use any monies it receives through the Walmart 
Settlement solely for the purposes provided therein.

1

DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2

https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/


6. The Governmental Entity submits to the jurisdiction of the court in the Governmental 
Entity’s state where the Consent Judgment is filed for purposes limited to that court’s role 
as provided in, and for resolving disputes to the extent provided in, the Walmart 
Settlement.

7. The Governmental Entity has the right to enforce the Walmart Settlement as provided 
therein.

8. The Governmental Entity, as a Participating Subdivision, hereby becomes a Releasor for all 
purposes in the Walmart Settlement, including but not limited to all provisions of Section X 
(Release), and along with all departments, agencies, divisions, boards, commissions, districts,
instrumentalities of any kind and attorneys, and any person in their official capacity elected 
or appointed to serve any of the foregoing and any agency, person, or other entity claiming 
by or through any of the foregoing, and any other entity identified in the definition of 
Releasor, provides for a release to the fullest extent of its authority. As a Releasor, the 
Governmental Entity hereby absolutely, unconditionally, and irrevocably covenants not to 
bring, file, or claim, or to cause, assist or permit to be brought, filed, or claimed, or to 
otherwise seek to establish liability for any Released Claims against any Released Entity in 
any forum whatsoever. The releases provided for in the Walmart Settlement are intended by 
the Parties to be broad and shall be interpreted so as to give the Released Entities the broadest
possible bar against any liability relating in any way to Released Claims and extend to the 
full extent of the power of the Governmental Entity to release claims. The Walmart 
Settlement shall be a complete bar to any Released Claim.

9. In connection with the releases provided for in the Walmart Settlement, each 
Governmental Entity expressly waives, releases, and forever discharges any and all 
provisions, rights, and benefits conferred by any law of any state or territory of the 
United States or other jurisdiction, or principle of common law, which is similar, 
comparable, or equivalent to § 1542 of the California Civil Code, which reads:

General Release; extent. A general release does not extend to claims that the 
creditor or releasing party does not know or suspect to exist in his or her favor at the 
time of executing the release that, if known by him or her, would have materially 
affected his or her settlement with the debtor or released party.

A Releasor may hereafter discover facts other than or different from those which it knows, 
believes, or assumes to be true with respect to the Released Claims, but each Governmental 
Entity hereby expressly waives and fully, finally, and forever settles, releases and discharges, 
upon the Effective Date, any and all Released Claims that may exist as of such date but which 
Releasors do not know or suspect to exist, whether through ignorance, oversight, error, 
negligence or through no fault whatsoever, and which, if known, would materially affect the 
Governmental Entities’ decision to participate in the Walmart Settlement.

10. Nothing herein is intended to modify in any way the terms of the Walmart Settlement, to 
which Governmental Entity hereby agrees. To the extent this Election and Release is 
interpreted differently from the Walmart Settlement in any respect, the Walmart Settlement 
controls.

2

DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



I have all necessary power and authorization to execute this Election and Release on behalf of the 
Governmental Entity.

Signature: /signer_1_walmart/                                    

Name: /name_1_walmart/                                       

Title: /title_1_walmart/                                          

Date: /date_1_walmart/                                         

3

DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



DocuSign Envelope ID: BEB1CFD1-803C-4605-9465-E883FA15E4C2



Forest Park Juneteenth Committee  

Date: February 27, 2023  

To: Village of Forest Park   

Attention: Rachell Entler  

From: Illinois Juneteenth Committee, Forest Park 

Event: Juneteenth 2023, Flag-Raising Ceremony.  

Date: Monday, June 5, 2023, Rain Date: Monday, June 12, 2023.   

Time: 11:30-12:15 with flag-raising at 12 noon.  

Event contact: Marjorie Adam Clark, 708 466 2795 marjorie.e.adam@gmail.com   

In celebration of Juneteenth 2023, we request permission to host our 3rd annual Juneteenth Flag-Raising 
Ceremony in the parking lot at Forest Park Village Hall. We would like to raise the Juneteenth flag on the 
outdoor Village Hall flagpole. We request that the Juneteenth flag be hung from June 5, 2023, to July 4, 
2023. The purpose of having the Juneteenth flag hang at Village Hall until July 4 is to reflect our 
community’s common bond of freedom.  

Additionally, we ask that the parking lot be empty of cars prior and during the event because we will be 
setting up the staging near the exit of the parking lot. Next, like the previous years, we will need your help 
with securing a stage, tents, sound, and chairs.  We truly appreciate the Village’s continued support of 
diversity in Forest Park! We thank you in advance for your support.  

 

Kind regards,   
Marjorie Adam Clark  
Illinois Juneteenth Committee, Forest Park  
National Juneteenth Observance Foundation 
 



 
828 N. Harvey Ave. 
Oak Park, IL 60302 

 
 

 
 
 
February 27, 2023 
 
 
 
The Honorable Rory Hoskins 
Forest Park Village Council 
517 Desplaines Avenue 
Forest Park, IL  60130 
 
Dear Mayor Hoskins and Members of the Village Council: 
 
On behalf of Heritage Chorale, a volunteer community chorus based in Oak Park/Forest 
Park/River Forest, I would like to request placement of a banner to promote our upcoming 
concert series.  One concert will be performed in Forest Park (4/15), the other in River Forest 
(4/16).  We would like the banner hung at the Madison/Circle location on April 3, 2023 and 
removed on April 17, 2023. 
 
Thank you very much. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Linda Fehr 
Advertising Manager, Heritage Chorale 

 





























AGENDA MEMO 

Village Council Meeting 

Forest Park, Illinois 

March 13, 2023 

 

Issue Statement  

Agenda Item 10.A: Discussion: IEPA Loan Application for Funding for Lead Water Service Line Replacements 

 

Background 

The Village Administrator will discuss the application that was filed with the ILEPA for funding assistance 
(low interest loan) to assist with the replacement of lead water service lines throughout the Village.  It is hoped 
that the Village receives funding assistance via this application through the award of forgivable loan 
funding.  In conjunction with said application, the Village shall hold a public hearing regarding same (said 
public hearing will be hosted by the Village’s Public Works Director and Village Engineer). 

Below, please find the link that contains the public hearing legal notice as well as application documents. 

LINK 

Again, it is hoped that the Village is able to secure forgivable loan funding (which is similar to a grant), as well 
as other grant funding, to pay for said lead water service line replacements - in efforts to minimize the 
utilization of any available local funds. 

Following any funding announcement in the future by the ILEPA regarding said application, staff along with 
the Village’s consulting engineers will report back to the Council in efforts to secure policy direction 
concerning the financing (based upon available funding sources such as grants or local funds) of future lead 
water service replacements throughout the Village (including if the Village shall not pursue loan assistance 
should none of it be forgivable).  The Village will need to complete said lead water service line replacements 
over the course of the next 17 years pursuant to the State Law that was passed in 2021. 

 

http://cdn.forestpark.net/2023/Docs/032023PublicHearing.pdf

	0-031323VillageCouncilAgenda
	3A-022723VillageCouncilMinutes
	THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE
	VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
	HELD ON MONDAY EVENING, FEBRUARY 27, 2023
	ROLL CALL
	Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins answered the Roll Call.
	APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	APPROVAL OF BILLS:
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins

	7A-BillsByResolution
	03.13.2023 Resolution.pdf
	03.13.2023 AGENDA.pdf

	9A-AlleyProject
	1
	9A-AlleyProject
	2023-2024AlleyProjects
	Alley Improvements.Revised March 2023
	9X-AlleyProject
	1
	9X-AlleyProjectSpecs
	AlleyPlan
	AlleyPlan2




	9B-WaterProject
	031323WaterProjectMemo
	9B-WaterProject
	1
	9X-WaterProjectSpecs
	DOC017
	0023_BG105_SOQ_02022023



	9C-OpioidMatter
	1
	9X-OpioidMatter
	2
	9X-OpioidMatter
	3
	1
	2



	9D-JuneteenthFlagRaisingCeremonyRequest
	9E-HeritageChoraleBannerRequest
	9F-SummerClubhouseTrip
	9G-RecBoardAppointments
	Rec Board Appt Memo
	9X-RecBoardAppointments
	jcunningham_recboardappt
	jharlan_recboardappt


	10A-MemoReILEPAloan



